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Banking is one of the most sensitive businesses all over the world. Banks play an important role in the economy and are considered as the backbone of an economy in every country and Pakistan is no exemption. Banks are custodian to the assets of the general masses. The banking sector plays a significant role in a contemporary world of money and economy. It influences and facilitates many different but integrated economic activities like resources mobilization, poverty elimination, production and distribution of public finance.

1.1) History of Jamuna Bank Ltd:

Jamuna Bank Limited (JBL) is a Banking Company registered under the Companies Act, 1994 with its Head Office at Chini Shilpa Bhaban, 3, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000. The Bank started its operation from 3rd June 2001.

Jamuna Bank Limited is a highly capitalized new generation Bank with an Authorized Capital of Tk. 4,000.00 million and Paid-up Capital of Tk.1,313.26 million. The total capital/equity of the bank stands at Tk. 2,444.33million as on December 31, 2008. Currently the Bank has 44 (Forty Four ) branches-16 in Dhaka City, 8 in Chittagotang, 4 in Gazipur, 3 in Sylhet, 1 in Bogra, 2 in Naogaon, 1 in Munshigang, 1 in Shirajganj, 1 in Rajshahi, 1 in Narayanganj, 1 in Kushtia, 1 in Dinajpur, 1 in Noakhali and 2 in Comilla.

The Bank undertakes all types of banking transactions to support the development of trade and commerce of the country. JBL's services are also available for the entrepreneurs to set up new ventures and BMRE of industrial units. Jamuna Bank Ltd., the only Bengali named new generation private commercial  bank was established by a group of winning local entrepreneurs conceiving an idea of creating a model banking institution with different outlook to offer the valued customers,  a comprehensive range of financial services and innovative products for sustainable mutual growth and prosperity. The sponsors are reputed personalities in the filed of trade, commerce and industries.

The Bank is being managed and operated by a group of highly educated and professional team with diversified experience in finance and banking.  The Management of the bank constantly focuses on understanding and anticipating customers needs. The scenario of banking business is changing day by day, so the bank's responsibility is to device strategy and new products to cope with the changing environment. Jamuna Bank Ltd. has already achieved tremendous progress within only Eight years. The bank has already ranked as one of top quality service providers & is known for its reputation.

At present the Bank has real-time centralized Online banking branches (Urban & Rural) throughout the Country having smart IT-Backbone. Besides these traditional delivery point, the bank has ATM of its own, sharing with other partner banks & Consortium throughout the Country.

The operation hour of the Bank is 9:00 A.M. To 5:00 P.M. from Sunday to Thursday with transaction hour from 9:00 A.M. to 3:00 P.M. The Bank remains closed at Friday and Saturday including government holidays.

ii) VISION OF THE ORGANIZATION:

To become a leading banking institution and to play a pivotal role in the development of the country.

iii) MISSION OF THE ORGANIZATION:

The Bank is committed to satisfying diverse needs of its customers through an array of products at a competitive price by using appropriate technology and providing timely service so that a sustainable growth, reasonable return and contribution to the development of the country can be ensured with a motivated and professional work-force

 IV) Corporate Slogan:

Your Partner for growth

v) Strategy: 


To manage and operate the Bank in the most efficient manner to enhance financial performance and to control cost of fund

•

To strive for customer satisfaction through quality control and delivery of timely services

•

To identify customers' credit and other banking needs and monitor their perception towards our performance in meeting those requirements

.•To review and update policies, procedures and practices to enhance the ability to extend better service to customers

.•To train and develop all employees and provide them adequate resources so that customers' needs can be reasonably addressed

.•To promote organizational effectiveness by openly communicating company plans, policies, practices and procedures to employees in a timely fashion

•To cultivate a working environment that fosters positive motivation for improved performance•

To diversify portfolio both in the retail and wholesale market

•To increase direct contact with customers in order to cultivate a closer relationship between the bank and its customers.

1.2) OBJECTIVES OF THE ORGANIZATION

1. To earn and maintain CAMEL Rating 'Strong'

 2. To establish relationship banking and improve service quality through development of Strategic Marketing Plans.

3. To remain one of the best banks in Bangladesh in terms of profitability and assets quality.

4. To introduce fully automated systems through integration of information technology.

5. To ensure an adequate rate of return on investment.

6. To keep risk position at an acceptable range (including any off balance sheet risk).

7. To maintain adequate liquidity to meet maturing obligations and commitments

8. To develop and retain a quality work-force through an effective human

 Resources Management System.

9. To ensure optimum utilizations of all available resources

10. To pursue an effective system of management by ensuring compliance to ethical norms, transparency and accountability at all levels.

11. Some of the other objectives of Jamuna Bank are:

i.
Improve customer services.

ii.
Quick disposal of credit cases.

iii.
Efficient operation of the branches.

iv.
Better Public Relations.

 Sponsor:  

The sponsor of Jamuna Bank Limited is highly entrepreneurs of the country’s having stake in different segment of the national economy. They are eminent industrialist and business person having wide business reputation in home and abroad.

1.3) Banking Functions:
Banking functions of a commercial bank consists of acceptance of deposits and granting of loans. These functions are also regarded as primary functions. These are called as primary functions because banks are meant to discharge these functions.
Subsidiary Functions
Besides acceptance of deposits and granting of loans, banks perform a number of other functions. These functions are called secondary or subsidiary functions. Subsidiary functions are again divided into two types called:
· Agency service.
· General utility services.
The following agency services are rendered by a commercial bank:
· A customer may leave standing instructions with the banker for payment of different sums to different institutions. Bank arranges payment insurance premium, subscriptions to clubs and societies as per the instruction of the customer. Banks charge a nominal amount of charges for these services rendered.
· Bank collect dividend and interest on securities as per standing instructions of the customers.
· Banks undertake purchase and sale of securities on behalf of customers.
· It facilitates in transfer of fund from one bank to another.
· It helps in collection and payment of cheques, bills and promissory notes.
· It acts as an executor or trustee because it facilitates in the administration of a will.
Besides the above functions a number of general utility functions are performed by a commercial bank. These are:
· It undertakes safe custody of valuable and important documents against theft and fire because banks provide locker facilities.
· Banks act as a referee in respect of financial standing of the customer.
· It provides various trade information and statistics.
· It underwrites for the loan raised by the government.
· It issues personal and commercial letters of credit.
1.3.1 Functions of JBL:
Since JBL is a private commercial bank, it performs a variety of functions.

Like other commercial banks, JBL is engaged in financing international trade.   Its other major functions include receiving deposits, advancing loans and discounting of exchange. The functions performed by JBL are: 


Accepting Deposits:

This function is important because banks largely depend on the funds deposited with them by its customers. Deposits are of many types:

Acceptance of deposits: One of the most major functions of a commercial bank is to receive and accept deposits from those who can save. Banks usually accept deposits from those who have surplus funds and who cannot employ these surplus funds in profitable direction. Banks accept deposits in three manners. Fixed deposit is a type of deposit which fetches much more rate of interest and are drawn after the expiry of a specified period. Current deposits refer to a type of deposit which carry a very low rate of interest and allow withdrawal at any time. These types of deposits are usually preferred by the business people. Savings bank deposit is a type of deposit which aims at encouraging saving among the people and bears a higher rate of interest than the current deposits and less than fixed deposits.

i.

 Current deposits

Current deposits are also called demand liability on current deposits. JBL pays practically no interest on current deposits. Businessmen usually open current accounts. In JBL current account can be opened with a minimum amount of 500 Tk.

ii.
PLS saving deposit

Profit and loss sharing deposits (PLS) are also called checking accounts. One can deposit and draw money easily. Profit on PLS is calculated every month but paid after six months. PLS account can be opened with a minimum amount of Tk500/-

Iii    PLS term deposits

Fixed term deposits are deposits with the bank for certain fixed period before the expiry of which they cannot be withdrawn unless giving due notice. In this case the rates of profit will be different depending upon the time period.

Granting of Loans: Granting of loan is also an important function of a commercial bank. The amount of loan depends on the bank's strength in receiving deposits. Banks acts an agency which helps in mobilizing people's savings and using them to be spent for the promotion of trade, industry and commerce of a country. Banks usually advance loans in the form of loans, cash credits, overdrafts and discounting bills of exchange. When lump sum advances are made against some security, it is called as loans. Cash credit is an arrangement where customers are allowed to borrow money from the bank up to a certain limit against some tangible securities. Customer is allowed to draw the amount according to his needs. Bank charges interest on cash credit on daily balance method and not on entire amount. Overdraft is an arrangement where current account holders are allowed to draw in excess of their deposit and pay interest on the amount overdrawn. There is another way of advancing loan called discounting of bill of exchange. Under this system banks lend without any collateral security.
3.8.2. 
Discounting bills of exchange

Discounting of bill is practically speaking lending for exchange at their market rate i.e. it pays to holder of the bill an amount equal to the face value after deducting interest at the current market rate for the period. This bill has to be mature. This is the common way used for keeping a part of assets of the bank in a liquid form.

Agency service

JBL also provides best and unique service to its valued customers. JBL provide the following agency services to the customers:

i.
Collection of dividends

As JBL deals with the purchase and sale of various types of securities, therefore JBL also provide dividend or interest earned on share or bonds or invested money.

    ii.
Collection of Cheques 

In the collection and payment of Cheques, bills and promissory notes etc. National bank of Pakistan acts as an agent for its customers.

iii.
Acting as an agent

JBL also acts as an agent correspondent or representative for its customer at home or abroad.

iv.
General utility services:

Utilities provided by JBL are as follows:

a.
Clearance of utility bills

JBL  provides the service of clearing the utility bills i.e. electricity, gas and telephone bills of its customers. For this purpose it also provides evening banking services.

b.
Lockers facility

JBL  also provides locker facilities to its customers to keep their valuable assets in it. The charges of different size of lockers are different.

c.
Acts as a referee: JBL provides useful services to its customers by acting as a referee to their credit worthiness.

d.
Supply of information

JBL provides operational and advisory service for foreign exchange accounts/activities.

3.9
Unmatched Banking Facilities

· Deposit security, Guaranteed by Government of Bangladesh.

· Highest rates of return to attract the savings.

· Lowest rates on exports and other borrowings.

· Largest contribution towards Government and Semi-Government requirements.

· Agents of the SBP handling Treasury Functions, receipts of Taxes & other Revenues. 

· Handling of salaries & pensions of federal/provincial/defense personnel.

· Utility Bills collections.

· Sale and encashment of prize Bonds.

· Sale and encashment of Defense Savings and Special Savings Certificates.

· Safe Deposit Lockers for customers.

· Rational Human Resource Management.

1.4)

 Role of the Organization in the Economic Development of Bangladesh:

 Jamuna Bank Foundation and CSR Activities
At least 2% of our annual profit of every year is put aside for the foundation to conduct Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) activities. The mainstream CSR activities that are carried out through this foundation are:
· Scholarship program for brilliant poor student.
· Education Promotion Scheme (Interest free loan).
· Helping people affected by natural calamities.
· Helping people in slum areas.
· Donation to educational institutions to setup computer lab.
· Beautification of Dhaka City.
Scholarship program for brilliant poor student
This is a stipend package for poor and meritorious students that take care of the beneficiaries throughout their student life. Jamuna Bank Scholarship Programme, launched For Helping to poor and meritorious students selected from different reputed educational institutions of Dhaka City including Govt. Laboratory High School, Viqarunnissa Noon School and College, Dhaka University, BUET, Dhaka Medical College, etc. enrolled as many as 1000 students from around 150 reputed educational institutions across the country by 31 December 2008. They are enrolled in the this programme to be taken care of for their whole educational life subject to their fulfillment of the eligibility criteria that include satisfactory academic results, non-involvement in student politics, financial insolvency etc. So far Tk. 19.3 million has been disbursed as scholarship under this programmed.



Education Promotion Scheme (Interest free loan)
Under Education Promotion Scheme, guard or interest-free loan is provided for poor and meritorious students to help them bear monthly educational expenditure including academic expenses, food, accommodation, etc. The guard is disbursed to the selected students in monthly installments till their accomplishing the master degree. Under this programme the students are required to repay the amount (only the principal amount) in long-term monthly installments after they have joined a confirmed job accomplishing their education properly. By 31 December 2008, Tk. 19.7 million was sanctioned to take care of around 138 poor and meritorious students from a number of reputed educational institutions like Dhaka University, Chittagong University, Dhaka Medical College, BUET, Bangladesh Agricultural University, Shahjalal University of Science and Technology etc.



Helping people affected by natural calamities
Another vital area we are dealing with as part of our CSR activities is helping people survive natural calamities. Under this welfare programme, Jamuna Bank provides relief in cash and kind for flood, fire or cyclone victims and cold-stricken people. The aim of these CSR activities is to help the target group overcome their provisional handicap and contribute to the socio-economic growth as soon as possible.



Helping people in slum areas
Besides natural calamities, fire breaks out sometimes in slum areas that guts the shanties and renders the affected people totally helpless. In that situation, we help the victims fight against the hard days and return to normal life.



Donation to educational institutions to setup computer lab
We have donated to Dhaka University and Chittagong University to set up two computer labs that help the students of those universities acquire ICT knowledge. This will certainly help the students to be ready to take the challenges of this information society.



Beautification of Dhaka City
In response to the call of the Dhaka City Corporation, Jamuna Bank has been sharing a good portion of the mammoth task of beautifying the capital since 2005. To make the capital a modern city enriched with adequate urban amenities, Jamuna Bank always joins hands with the government.

Other social Activity

1. FREE EYE CAMP,

 2. RELIEF DISTRIBUTION,

 3. ANTI DRUG SEMINAR BY 
4. JAMUNA BANK FOUNDATION,

 5. ANTI DRUG SEMINAR AT RAJSHAHI REGION 

6. JAMUNA BANK FOUNDATION AWARDED SCHOLARSHIP AMONG MERITORIOUS STUD 

1.5)

Organogram of Organization:

	Managing Director



[image: image10.wmf]0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2006

2007

2008



	Deputy Managing Director




[image: image11.wmf]0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2006

2007

2008


	Senior Executive Vice President




	Executive Vice President




	Senior Vice President



	Vice President




	Senior Assistant Vice President




	Assistant Vice President



1.6 Present Program: 

NEW SCHEMES

Marriage Deposit Scheme

Marriage of children, especially daughter is a matter of great concern to the parents. Marriage of children involves expense of considerable amount. Prudent parents make effort for gradual building of fund as per their capacity to meet the matrimonial expense of their children specially daughters. Parents get relief and can have peace of mind if they can arrange the necessary fund for marriage of their children, no matter whether they survive or not till the marriage occasion.

It can be a great help to the parents if there is any scope of deposit of a modest amount as per their financial capacity, which grows very fast at high rate of interest yielding a sizeable amount on maturity.

With this end in view JBL has introduced Marriage Deposit Scheme, which offers you an opportunity to build up your cherished fund by monthly deposit of small amount at your affordable capacity

Eligibility:

·       Marriage Deposit account can be opened in the name of children below the age of 18-years along with legal guardian.

·        For opening a marriage deposit account, maintenance a savings account with JBL is required.

Terms & Conditions:

1. Bank reserves the right to close the scheme if customers fail to deposit 3-consecutive installments.

2. If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate up to the time of closure.

3. Duties and taxes are payable by the customers as per government rules.

The above figures are indicative only and subject to change from time to time.

4. Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Lakhpati Deposit Scheme:

To become a lakhpati is a dream to most of the people of Bangladesh especially to the lower and lower middle class income group. We experience our expectations and wants are enormous in nature in our small span of life. To meet our deposit and wants we need right plan.

Keeping the above in mind JBL has introduced “Lakhopati Scheme” which has flexibility in report of maturity and monthly installment as per affordable capacity.

Terms & Conditions:

·        Bank reserves the right to close the scheme if customers fail to deposit 3-consecutive installments.

·        If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate up to the time of closure.

·        Duties and taxes are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·        The above figures are indicative only and subject to change from time to time.

·          Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Millionaire Deposit Scheme

It is a dream for many small savers to become a Millionaire.  The word ‘Millionaire' is really exciting. This dream can be a reality if you have a calculated plan and strong determination. JBL has introduced ‘Millionaire Deposit Scheme' which has flexibility in respect of period and monthly deposit as per your affordable capacity for giving a sum of Tk.1.00 (one) million i.e. Tk.10(ten) lac at a time.

Eligibility:

·         Millionaire Deposit account can be opened at any Branch of JBL

For opening a millionaire deposit account, maintenance a savings account with JBL is required.

Customer can deposit monthly installment through any of our online branches

Under standing instruction system, Customer can deposit money automatically his accounts.

Terms & Conditions:

·        Bank reserves the right to close the scheme if customers fail to deposit 3-consecutive installments.

·        If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate up to the time of closure.

·        Duties and taxes on the deposit, if any, are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·        The above figures are indicative only and subject to change from time to time.

·          Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Kotipati Deposit Scheme:

To become ‘Kotipati' is simply a dream for the most of the populace of Bangladesh. It is realizable for high income group who have strong determination and savings habit. If you decide and plan to save money from your regular income, you can own Tk1.00 crore easily by making a planned savings. In this regard, JBL has introduced “Kotipati” Deposit Scheme” offering the savings plan fit to your income and to execute your dream to be a Kotipati by monthly deposit at your affordable capacity. You can take advantage of the “Kotipati Deposit Scheme” from JBL and plan for your golden future accordingly.

Eligibility:

·          Kotipati Deposit account can be opened at any Branch of JBL.

·        For opening a Kotipati deposit account, maintenance a savings account with JBL is required.

Terms & Conditions:

·    Bank reserves the right to close the scheme if customers fail to deposit 3-consecutive installments.

·    If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate up to the time of closure.

·        Duties and taxes on the deposit, if any, are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·        The above figures are indicative only and subject to change from time to time.

·          Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Education Savings Scheme

Education is a basic need of every citizen. Every parent wants to impart proper education to their children. Education is the pre-requisite for socio-economic development of the country. As yet, there is no arrangement of free education to the citizens from the government level. As such, there should be pre-arrangement of fund to ensure higher education of the children. Otherwise higher education may be hindered due to change of economic condition, income of the parents at the future time when higher education shall be required. Today's higher education is becoming expired day by day. Parents can get relief and can have peace of mind if they can arrange the necessary fund for higher education of their children. As such, JBL has introduced ‘Education Savings Scheme' which offers you an opportunity to build up your cherished fund by monthly deposit of small amount at your affordable capacity or initial lump sum deposit to yield handsome amount on a future date to meet the educational expenses. Under this Scheme you have the different attractive options to avail the future benefit i.e. withdrawal of the total amount accumulated in lump sum or withdrawing monthly benefit to meet educational expense keeping the principal amount intact or to withdraw both principal and accumulated profit monthly for a certain period.

Eligibility:

· Education Savings account can be opened in the name of children below the age of 18-years along with legal guardian.

· For opening a education savings account, maintenance a savings account with JBL is required.

Terms & Conditions:

· Bank reserves the right to close the scheme if customers fail to deposit 3-consecutive installments.

·        If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate up to the time of closure.

·     Duties and taxes are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·    The above figures are indicative only and subject to change from time to time.

·   Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Monthly Benefit Scheme (MBS)

Jamuna Bank Limited has introduced Monthly Benefit Scheme (MBS) for the prudent persons having ready cash and desiring to have fixed income on monthly basis out of it without taking risk of loss and without encashing the principal amount. This scheme offers highest return with zero risk. You can plan your monthly expenditure with the certain monthly income under the scheme.

How to apply:

You have to open an account with any branch of JBL. The above noted monthly benefit will be deposited in this account in each month.

Eligibility:

· Any person having age of above 18-years can participate in this scheme through opening a savings or current account with any branch of JBL

·    Customer must be Bangladeshi Nationals/Citizen.

·   Persons below 18-years of old may open this account with his/her legal guardian

Characteristics:

·   Minimum deposit          :          Tk.1 (one) lac

·   Maximum deposit          :          Any amount multiple of Tk.1 (one) lac

·   After opening the account, the profit element will be deposited in that account

·   Upon maturity the term may be renewed for the next tenure.

Overdraft facility:

The concerned customer can avail loan facility upto 80% of the initial deposit.

Terms & Conditions:

· Bank reserves the right to change the rate of profit during the tenure of deposit.

· No loan facility will be allowed from any other Bank(s)/Financial Institution against the deposited amount except JBL.

· The initial deposited amount and term shall not be changed before maturity.

· If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate upto the time of closure.

·  Duties and taxes on the deposit, if any, are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·   Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Double/Triple Growth Deposit Scheme

For people who have cash flow at this moment and want to get it doubled/tripled quickly JBL has introduced Double/Triple Growth Deposit Scheme that offers you to make double/triple your money within 6(six) years and 9.5 (nine and a half) years respectively resulting a high rate of interest.

Eligibility:

· Any person having age of above 18-years can participate in this scheme through opening a savings or current account with any branch of JBL

· Customer must be Bangladeshi Nationals/Citizen.

·  Persons below 18-years of old may open this account with his/her legal guardian

Characteristics:

·    Minimum deposit        :      Tk.1 (one) lac

·    Maximum deposit        :    Any amount multiple of Tk.1 (one) lac

How to apply:

You have to open an account with any branch of JBL having deposit of the above figure.

Overdraft facility:

The concerned customer can avail loan facility up to 80% of the deposited amount.

Terms & Conditions:

·   Bank reserves the right to change the rate of profit during the tenure of deposit.

·   No loan facility will be allowed from any other Bank(s)/Financial Institution against the deposited amount except JBL.

·   The initial deposited amount shall not be changed before maturity.

·  If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate upto the time of closure.

·   Duties and taxes on the deposit, if any, are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·   Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

Monthly Savings Scheme (MSS)

Savings is the best friend in your bad days. Small savings can build up a prosperous future. Savings can meet up any emergencies. JBL has introduced Monthly Savings Scheme (MSS) that allows you to save on a monthly basis and get a handsome return upon maturity. If you want to build up a significant savings to carry out your cherished dream, JBL MSS is the right solution.

Eligibility:

·     MSS account can be opened at any Branch of JBL.

·     For opening a MSS account, maintenance a savings account with JBL is required.

Facility:

·    The concerned customer can avail loan facility upto 80% of the deposited amount.

·  The can deposit the monthly instilment at any branch of JBL and the same through on-line banking.

· Monthly installment can be automatically collected from your savings account maintained with JBL.

·   Customer can choose any day of the month as installment date.

Terms & Conditions:

· Bank reserves the right to close the scheme if customers fail to deposit 3-consecutive installments.

· If the Scheme is closed within 6-months, customer will get the deposited amount only and no interest/profit will be paid for the Scheme. If it is closed after 6-months, customers will get the deposited amount along with the interest at the normal savings rate upto the time of closure.

·   Duties and taxes on the deposit, if any, are payable by the customers as per government rules.

·   The above figures are indicative only and subject to change from time to time.

·   Money Laundering Prevention Act shall be exercised as per rules of Bangladesh Bank.

· No loan facility will be allowed from any other Bank(s)/Financial Institution against the deposited amount except JBL.

Jamuna Bank Limited has introduced real-time any branch banking on April 05, 2005. Now, customers can withdraw and deposit money from all branches located throughout the Country.   Our valued customers can also enjoy 24 hours banking service through  ATM card from any of Q-cash ATMs  located at different location throughout the Country.

JBL offers the following key Personal Banking Services:
-Current Deposit Account
-Savings Deposit Account
-Short Term Deposit Account
-Fixed Deposit Account
 No limit to the number of withdrawals
No minimum balance fee
Statement of account at your desired frequency
free cheque book
Q-Cash Round the Clock Banking
All types of general banking facilities
 Personal Loan for Women:
This product is designed specially for the working women and housewives. Housewives with reasonable income of the spouses are also eligible to avail this loan. The loan can be availed for the purchase of household appliances, house renovation

Agriculture Loan:
Jamuna Bank Provides Loans for Agro Industries at a concession.
1.7 Future Program:

Jamuna Bank is now running 9th years of its successful operation. JBL acknowledges the support of all valued customers, well-wishers and partners which has enabled us to reach at this stage.  We believe that like previous years they will be with us to give the opportunity to serve them in coming years.

Chapter 2

Research of the study:

2.1 Rationale of Study

This report has been prepared as a part of the internship program which is an integral part of the MBA program under the Dept. Business Administration in the Faculty of Business Studies, Southeast University, Dhaka The organization attachment was started on 2nd October,2009 and ended on 24December, 2009. This report on “Financial Statements Analysis of  Jamuna bank Limited” was assigned by academic supervisor Professor Dr. Sayed Masud Hossain , Dean, Business Administration Department, Southeast University.

2 .2 Background of Studies

As part of the academic requirement for completing MBA (Banking and Finance) Master Business Administration of the students are required to under go 3 months of internship with an organization. The internship is to serve the purpose of acquainting the students with the practice of knowledge of the discipline of banking administration.

2.3 Purpose of Study:

The purpose of the study is to make an analysis of Financial Analysis of Jamuna bank limited of in terms of Banking Sector. This study attempted to understand the financial conditions of Jamuna Bank on different segments such as Balance Sheet, Asset, Debt & Equity Ratio, profit and loss of Organization. The purpose is also to make recommendations for improving the financial stability and soundness of different services provided to the shareholders of JBL. It is also the purpose of the researcher to help the management by providing an idea to take appropriate decisions about the quality of the investing & financing in future. 

To observe, analyze and interpret the relevant data competently and in a useful manner. The main Purpose of the study in hand is together relevant information to compile internship report on Financial Analysis of Jamuna Bank

To work practically in an organization.

To develop interpersonal communication.

Objective of the Report:
The study has been undertaken with the following objectives:


1. To analysis the pros and cons of the conventional ideas about financial analysis of a Bank.


 2. To have better orientation on credit management activities specially credit policy and practices, credit appraisal, credit-processing steps, credit management, financing in various sector and recovery, loan classification method and practices of Jamuna Bank Limited (JBL)

 
 3. To compare the existing credit policy of Jamuna bank limited with that of best practices guideline given by Bangladesh Bank, the central bank of Bangladesh.(

 4. To identify and suggest scopes of improvement of management of JBL


 5. To get an overall idea about the performance of Jamuna Bank Ltd


 6. To fulfill the requirement of the internship program under MBA program
2.4 Scope of Study:

The scope of this study was strictly confined to the annual report & personal contact with the employees of Jamuna Bank ltd. To collect the information I worked in the finance section & cost & budget section of JBL. All other data related to the financial analysis was collected from web sites of JBL & other related co. 

2.5 Research Methodology
The report is based on my 3 months internship program in Jamuna Bank. The methodology reported for collection of data is primary as well as secondary data. The biggest source of information is my personal observation while working with staff and having discussion with them. Formally arranged interviews and discussions also helped me in this regards.

Primary data:

Personal observation

Interviews of staff

Secondary data:

Manuals 

Journals 

Magazine

Annual reports

Internet

 Data Collection:


Primary sources
Practical desk work
Face to face conversation with the officer
Direct observations
Face to face conversation with the client

Secondary sources 
Annual report of BPBL
Files & Folders
Daily diary (containing my activities of practical orientation in BPBL) maintained by me,
Various publications on BPBL, 
Website



2.6 RESEARCH OBJECTIVES:

2.6.1 Broad objective:

To assess and find out the financial conditions of the firm to analysis how much the co. is capable of doing business properly in future.

2.6.2 Specific objective:


 Whether the customers are loyal to buy Jamuna Bank product. Whether Color Bank can build the relationship with the target customer and the dealer through their products. Whether Jamuna Bank can build the relationship with the target customer and the specifies through their products. Whether Color Bank can build the relationship with the target customer and the painters through their products. Find out the source of information.  Find out the customer satisfaction level in consideration to Customer service. Find out the customer satisfaction level in consideration to the service of Jamuna Bank Bank. Whether Berger can create awareness in the consumer mind.



2.7 Limitations of the study:

 There were some restrictions to have access to the information confidential by     concern authority.


 Time and cost constraints also other limitations regarding this analysis.


 Lack of experience of the researcher.


  Analysis was based mainly on financial statements.
2.8 Origin of the Report:
Masters of Business Administration (MBA) Course requires a three months attachment with an organization followed by a report assigned by the supervisor in the organization and endorsed by the faculty advisor. As I am already working for Jamuna Bank Limited (JBL) I took the opportunity to do my internship in my own organization. My organizational supervisor Professor Dr. Sayed Masud Hassain, Dean, Dept. of Business Administration asked me to conduct a study on Comparative Analysis of Jamuna Bank Limited in terms of another Bank of Bangladesh. Also approved the topic and authorized me to prepare this report as part of the fulfillment of internship requirement.

2.9 Background of the Report:
Last year Bangladesh Bank undertook a project to review the global best practices in the banking sector and examines in the possibility of introducing these in the banking industry of Bangladesh. Four 'Focus Groups' were formed with participation from Nationalized Commercial Banks, Private Commercial Banks & Foreign Banks with representatives from the Bangladesh Bank as team coordinators to look into the practices of the best performing banks both at home and abroad. These focus groups identified and selected five core risk areas and produce a document that would be a basic risk management model for each of the five 'core' risk areas of banking. The five core risk areas are as follows- 

a) Credit Risks; 
b) Asset and Liability/Balance Sheet Risks; 
c) Foreign Exchange Risks; 
d) Internal Control and Compliance Risks; and 
e) Money Laundering Risks.

Bangladesh Bank in one of it’s circular (BRPD Circular no.17) advised the commercial banks of Bangladesh to put in place an effective risk management system by December, 2003 based on the guidelines sent to them.

 
1.7 Limitation of the Report
This report will only consider credit risks of Dhaka Bank limited. It will not cover

 Asset and liability/ balance sheet risk
 Foreign Exchange Risk
 Internal control And compliance risk
 Money laundering Risk.

Chapter 3

Brief Description of Organization:

3.1) General Banking

Financial institution/ intermediary that mediates or stands between ultimate borrowers and ultimate lenders is knows as banking financial institution. Banks perform this function in two ways- taking deposits from various areas in different forms and lending that accumulated amount of money to the potential investors in other different forms. 

General Banking is the starting point of all the banking operating. General Banking department aids in taking deposits and simultaneously provides some ancillaries services. It provides those customers who come frequently and those customers who come one time in banking for enjoying ancillary services. In some general banking activities, there is no relation between banker and customers who will take only one service form bank. On the other hand, there are some customers with who bank are doing its business frequently. It is the department, which provides day-to-day services to the customers. Everyday it receives deposits from the customers and meets their demand for cash by honoring cheques. It opens new accounts, demit funds, issue bank drafts and pay orders etc. since bank in confined to provide the service everyday general banking is also known as retail banking. 

General Banking consists of the many sections in the branch:

 These are:
1. Customer Service

2. Account Opening/Closing
3.Remittance
4. Payment Order Issue

5. Demand Draft Issue/Collection
6. T.T.Issue/Collection
7.Endorsements
8 IBC/OBC Collection.
9. Deposit Department
10. Locker Service
11. Account’s Department.(
12. Clearing
13. Transfer.
14Cash

Customer Services of Jamuna Bank Limited: Professional merit and Competency, Flexibility, Determination and Dedication are the core resources that JBLconsider to be of paramount importance for building a client oriented modern banking. Customer satisfaction is JBL foremost professional undertaking. Therefore, a satisfied client is JBL precious product and they consider them MTBL ambassador in the market.



Account Opening of JBL:
 Under this department, JBL officer opens different types of account on the request of clients. The procedure of opening account is given bellow:

Types of Accounts:
General Products are:

 (Current Deposit:
Interest Rate 0.00%
     ▫ Individual Account
     ▫ Joint Account
     ▫ Proprietor Ship Account
     ▫ Limited Company Account

 (Savings Deposits:
Interest Rate 6.25%
     ▫ Individual Account
     ▫ Joint Account
     ▫ Proprietor Ship Account
     ▫ Limited Company Account

 (Short Term Deposits:
Interest Rate 6.00%
     ▫ Individual Account
     ▫ Joint Account
     ▫ Proprietor Ship Account
     ▫ Limited Company Account

 (Fixed Deposits:
Fixed deposit is one, which is repayable after the expiry of a predetermined period fixed by him. The period varies form 1 month to 12 months. These deposits are not repayable on demand but they are withdrawals subject to a period of notice. Hence, it is a popularly known as ‘Time Deposit’ or ‘Time Liabilities”. Normally the money on a fixed deposit is not repayable before the expiry of a fixed period.

Before opening a Fixed Deposit Account a customer has to fill up an application form which contains the followings:

▫ Amount in figures
▫ Beneficiary’s name and address
▫ Period 
▫ Rate of interest 
▫ Date of issue
▫ Date of maturity
▫ Instructions:
- To be renewed automatically with interest for the next period.
- Not to be renewed for next period. 
- Pay interest to account no.  on maturity 
▫ Special instruction 
▫ How the account will be operated (singly or jointly) 

3.2) Corporate Banking

The motto of JBL's Corporate Banking services is to provide personalized solutions to our customers. The Bank distinguishes and identifies corporate customers' need and designs tailored solutions accordingly. 
Jamuna Bank Ltd. offers a complete range of advisory, financing and operational services to its corporate client groups combining trade, treasury, investment and transactional banking activities in one package. Whether it is project finance, term loan, import or export deal, a working capital requirement or a forward cover for a foreign currency transaction, our Corporate Banking Managers will offer you the accurate solution. Our corporate Banking specialists will render high class service for speedy approvals and efficient processing to satisfy customer needs. 
Corporate Banking business envelops a broad range of businesses and industries. You can leverage on our know-how in the following sectors mainly:
· Agro prIndustry (Import Substitute / Export oriented)
· Textile Spinning, Dyeing / Printing 

· Export Oriented Garments, Sweater.

· Food & Allied

· Paper & Paper Products 

· Engineering, Steel Mills

· Chemical and chemical products etc.

· Telecommunications. 

· Information Technology
· Real Estate & Construction ·
· Wholesale trade 
· Transport · Hotels, Restaurants ·
· Non Bank Financial Institutions
· Loan Syndication ·
· Project Finance · Investment Banking
· Lease Finance · Hire Purchase · International Banking ·
· Export Finance

3.3) Personal Banking Division:

Personal Banking Division (PBD) introduces to the customers with a variety of products. Our PBD continuously meets the challenges of developing new products and services to match the specific requirements of customers.
Personal Banking Division (PBD) issues both VISA Debit Cards and VISA Credit Cards. VISA is the renowned Card brand in the earth. Jamuna Bank Limited is a principal member of VISA Worldwide. Remittance Cell is another successful wing of the Personal Banking Division. Our product range includes:
VISA Debit Cards - You can now avail the convenience of VISA Debit Card. It is the easiest and the most secured way of utilizing your money for 24/7 retail purchases as well as cash withdrawal.
VISA Credit Cards - The JBL Credit Card gives you a fast, convenient and reliable way to pay, 24 hours a day, wherever you are in the world.
     VISA Classic
     VISA Gold
International Credit Cards – JBL International Credit Cards (VISA) allows you flexibility
Customer can enjoy higher ATM withdrawal limit each day.
     No fees on retail purchase and can use our Credit Cards at thousands of retail outlets around the world. · There will be no commission charge on the endorsement of foreign currency for self and spouse.
     Our customer service agents are available on 365 days to offer assistance for you. Just connects to our agents and satisfy your banking needs anytime of a day or any query that you might have.
3.4) International Trade Finance:

International Trade forms the major business activity undertaken by Jamuna Bank Ltd. The Bank with its worldwide correspondent network and close relationships with key financial institutions provides an extensive trade services network to handle your transactions efficiently. Our key branches in Dhaka, Chittagong, Sylhet and Naogaon are staffed by personnel experienced in International Trade Finance. These offices are the focal point for processing import and Export transactions for both small and large corporate customers. We offer a complete range of Trade Finance services. Our professionals will work with you to develop solutions tailored to meet your requirements, through mobilizing our full range of trade services locally, and drawing on our global resources. We can offer you professional advice on all aspects of International Trade requirements, namely:
· Issuing, advising and confirming of Documentary Credits.
· Pre-shipment and post-shipment finance.
· Negotiation and purchase of Export Bills.
· Discounting of Bills of Exchange.
· Collection of Bills. Assist customers to insure all risks.
· Foreign Currency Dealing etc.
3.5) List of Foreign Correspondents
 
To provide International Trade related services we have established Correspondent Banking relationship with 336 locations of 106 world reputed Banks in more than 100 countries.  
 

Our main Correspondent Banks are:
Citi Bank  N.A., Standard Chartered, American Express Bank, Bank of New York, Bank of Nova Scotia,  Duetche Bank, Dresdner Bank AG, Habib American Bank, Habib Bank AG Zurich, Bayerische Hypo Vareins Bank, Mashreq Bank PSC, Nordea Bank AB,  Royal Bank of Canada, UBS AG, Union De Banques Arabes ET, Francaises, Wachovia Bank NA, Forties Bank S.A/NV,  Svenska Handlesbanken,  Bank of Ceylon, Banca Toscana, ABN Amro Bank, Commonwealth Bank of Australia, Danske Bank A/S. Absa Bank Ltd., Agricultural Bank of Chaina, Banca Intesa SPA, Banca Italo Albanese, Banca Popolare Commercio E Industria SPA,  Bank Austria Credittanstal AG, Bank Commonwealth, Bank Madiri (Europe), Bank of Cyprus, Bank of Bahrain and Kuwait, Bank of Jordan Ltd., Bank Sadarat Iran, Blue Nile Bank, Commercial Bank of Kuwait, Commercial Bank of Qatar Ltd., Development Bank of the Philippines, Dexia Bank SA,  EON Bank Berhad, First International Merchant Bank PLC., Foreign Trade Bank of North Korea, Foreign Trade Bank of Vietnam, Hiroshima bank, HVB, Hungary RT, ICICI Bank Canada. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, ING Bank NV, Islamic Bank of Yemen and for Finance & Investment,  Korea Exchange Bank, National Commercial Bank, Shinhan Bank, State Bank of India (Canada) UFJ Bank Ltd., United Bank of India, Bank of Bhutan, Allied Bank Philippines.
3.6) Foreign Remittance:

Jamuna Bank Ltd. has a network of 19 branches in Bangladesh and 4 more branches are going to be added to network soon.
 
Remittance services are available at all branches and foreign remittances may be sent to any branch by the remitters favoring their beneficiaries.
 Jamuna Bank Ltd. has a network of 19 branches in Bangladesh and 4 more branches are going to be added to network soon.
 
Remittance services are available at all branches and foreign remittances may be sent to any branch by the remitters favoring their beneficiaries.
 
Remittances are credited to the account of beneficiaries instantly through Electronic Fund Transfer (EFT) mechanism or within shortest possible time. 
 
Jamuna Bank Ltd. has correspondent banking relationship with all major banks located in almost all the countries/cities. Expatriate Bangladeshis may send their hard earned foreign currencies through those banks or may contact any renowned banks nearby ( where they reside/work) to send their money to their dear ones in Bangladesh.
 
To facilitate sending money in Bangladeshi Taka directly, Jamuna Bank Ltd. has Taka Drawing Arrangement with many banks/exchange companies in different countries. The expatriate Bangladeshis may send their money in BDT through the branches/subsidiaries of Jamuna Bank Ltd.

To facilitate its customers in the area of Home Remittances, Jamuna Bank has taken a number of measures to:

· Increase home remittances through the banking system 

· Meet the SBP directives/instructions for timely and prompt delivery of remittances to the beneficiaries 

3.7) Credit Facilities:
· The main focus of Jamuna Bank Ltd. Credit Line/Program is financing business, trade and industrial activities through an effective delivery system.  
· Jamuna Bank Ltd. offers credit to almost all sectors of commercial activities having productive purpose.  
· The loan portfolio of the Bank encompasses a wide range of credit programs.  
· Credit is also offered to major thrust sectors, as earmarked by the govt., at a reduced interest rate to develop frontier industries.
· Credit facilities are offered to individuals including housewives, businessmen, small and big business houses, traders, manufactures, corporate bodies, etc.  
· Loan is provided to the rural people for agricultural production and other off-farm activities.  
· Loan pricing system is customer friendly.  
· Prime customers enjoy prime rate in lending and other services.  
· Quick appreciation, appraisal, decision and disbursement are ensured.  
Credit facilities are extended as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank (Central Bank of Bangladesh) and operational procedures of the Bank.

3.8) Shop Finance Scheme:
Objectives:
      01.  To enable the small business community to run the business smoothly
02.  Facilitating expansion of the existing businesses
      03.  To improve the banking habit of self employed persons
      04. To diversify bank's lending to Small & Medium Enterprises (SME) which
       are considered as less risky and help community developments. It may be
      Noted down that the government is also encouraging investment in SME sector.
 Categories of eli gible business:
      i)      Grocery/departmental/whole sale store
      ii)     Confectionary/bakery (owned by the bakers)
     iii)     Stationary shops
     iv)  Cloth materials & small local garment traders
     v)      Shoe makers/shops
    vi)     PVC & plastic product traders/small manufacturers
    vii)   Tiles/sanitary items retailers
   Categories of eli gible busine

      i)     Grocery/departmental/whole sale store
     ii)     Confectionary/bakery (owned by the bakers)
     iii)    Stationary shops
     iv)  Cloth materials & small local garment traders
     v)    Shoe makers/shops
   vi)     PVC & plastic product traders/small manufacturers
   vii)   Tiles/sanitary items retailers
  viii)   Computer/Photostat/Cyber Café.
  ix)    Electrical & electronic items retailers
  x)     Pharmacy
  xi)    Gift shop/cosmetics shops
  xii)    Restaurant/fast food joints
  xiii)    Hardwire shops
  xiv)    Glass/ceramic retail outlets
 

  xv)     Sports kit retailers
 

 xvi)    Photo studio
 

 xvii)    Rod, Cement & C.I. Sheet (Tin) Shop
 

 xviii)    Engineering Workshop
 

 xix)     Fertilizer & Pesticide shop
  

Maximum Loan Amount:
1)   Up to a maximum of 10.00 lac in single case or 60% of possession value (distress value to be considered) whichever is lower. However, loan size will depend on creditworthiness of the borrower and the decision of the sanctioning authority.
2)   Branch Manager must verify the amount of possession money actually paid before recommending such proposal.
Tenure of the loan limit:
Minimum 01 year - Maximum 03 years from the date of disbursement of the loan
Eligibility criteria:
The applicant must fulfill the following criteria to be eligible for loans and advances under the scheme:
i)          Shop owner must run the establishment himself, having at least three years of successful business experience
ii)          Valid lease deed for a minimum period of 03 years up to 05 years
iii)          Satisfactory conducted deposit account with JBL for minimum 03 months.
iv)  To deposit the daily sales proceeds in the account maintained with JBL
v)           Agree to abide by credit rules & regulations of JBL
vi) Furnishing net-worth of the applicant/client.
vii)       Clean CIB 
viii)       The bank reserves the right to accept or reject any application without assigning any reason whatsoever.
ix)        The intending borrower /loanee shall apply through the letter head of the business firm or through a plain paper requesting the branch manager for sanction of loan under the Shop Finance Scheme 
Security:
i)           Simple deposit of valid lease deed of agreement of the shop.
ii)          A tripartite agreement to be signed in between leaseholder/shop owner/Bank- to the effect that the leaseholder cannot rent out or transfer the leased property without the written consent of the Bank.
iii)         The lease deed between the landlord and the borrower must be duly executed & the original lease deed should be kept in the Bank as part of document. 
iv)         Lease must contain provisions enabling the landlord to forfeit the lease and enable the bank to enforce a right to sell the possession of the shop to liquidate the default debt (if any).
v)          Letter of disclaimer by the landlord to facilitate the bank to liquidate the default loan (if any)
vi)         Equal numbers of post dated cheques covering amount of each loan installment
Insurance
All borrowing customers' inventory i.e. Stock-in-trade will be insured against Fire, Rsd & other risks with the Bank's mortgage clause cost of which will be borne by the shop owner/client/borrower.
Repayment Schedule:
  Repayment schedule should be as under:
  i)     In case of 01 year, 10 monthly installments for the loan limit up to Tk. 3.00 lac with 02 month
        grace period from the date of disbursement

 ii)     In case of 02 year, 22 monthly installments for the loan limit up to Tk.6.00 lac with 02 month
        grace period from the date of disbursement

 iii)    In case of 03 year, 34 monthly installments for the loan limit above Tk.6.00 lac with 02 month
        grace   period from the date of disbursement Computer/Photostat/Cyber Café.

  ii)   Valid lease deed for a minimum period of 03 years up to 05 years

  iii)    Satisfactory conducted deposit account with JBL for minimum 03 months.

 iv)  To deposit the daily sales proceeds in the account maintained with JBL
 v)   Agree to abide by credit rules & regulations of JBL
 vi)  Furnishing net-worth of the applicant/client.
 vii)   Clean CIB 
viii)  The bank reserves the right to accept or reject any application without assigning any reason whatsoever.
ix)    The intending borrower /loanee shall apply through the letter head of the business firm or through a plain paper requesting the branch manager for sanction of loan under the Shop Finance Scheme 
Security:
i)           Simple deposit of valid lease deed of agreement of the shop.
ii)       A tripartite agreement to be signed in between leaseholder/shop owner/Bank- to the effect that the leaseholder cannot rent out or transfer the leased property without the written consent of the Bank.
iii)    The lease deed between the landlord and the borrower must be duly executed & the original lease deed should be kept in the Bank as part of document. 
iv)  Lease must contain provisions enabling the landlord to forfeit the lease and enable the bank to enforce a right to sell the possession of the shop to liquidate the default debt (if any).
v)    Letter of disclaimer by the landlord to facilitate the bank to liquidate the default loan (if any)
vi) Equal numbers of post dated cheques covering amount of each loan installment
Insurance
All borrowing customers' inventory i.e. Stock-in-trade will be insured against Fire, Rsd & other risks with the Bank's mortgage clause cost of which will be borne by the shop owner/client/borrower.
Repayment Schedule:
  Repayment schedule should be as under:
 i)     In case of 01 year, 10 monthly installments for the loan limit up to Tk. 3.00 lac with 02 month
        Grace period from the date of disbursement
ii)     In case of 02 year, 22 monthly installments for the loan limit up to Tk.6.00 lac with 02 month
        Grace period from the date of disbursement
iii)    In case of 03 year, 34 monthly installments for the loan limit above Tk.6.00 lac with 02 month
        Grace   period from the date of disbursement

3.9) Q-Cash Round The Clock Banking:
Jamuna Bank Q-Cash ATM Card enables you to withdraw cash and do a variety of banking transactions 24 hours a day. Q-Cash ATMs are conveniently located covering major shopping centres, business and residential areas in major cities. The network will expand to cover the whole country within a short span of time. 
With your Jamuna Bank Q-Cash ATM card you can:
· Cash withdrawal Round The Clock from any Q-Cash logo marked ATM booths.
· POS transaction (shopping malls, restaurants, jewellaries etc) 
· Enjoy overdraft facilities on the card (if approved)
· Utility Bill Payment facilities
· Cash transaction facilities for selective branches nationwide 
· ATM service available in Dhaka and Chittagong Withdrawal allowed from ATM's of Jamuna Bank Ltd., AB Bank, The City Bank, Janata Bank, IFIC Bank, Mercantile Bank, Pubali Bank, Eastern Bank Ltd. respectively
· And more to come Is Q-Cash
 Q-Cash is fully secure. Q-Cash cardholders can only carry out transactions on Q-Cash ATMs with Personal Identification Numbers (PIN). The PIN is a unique 4-digit number that allows you to access your account. You can change your PIN anytime from ATM machine. In case you have lost your card, transactions cannot be done without the PIN. In line with the issuance of Q-cash products JBL is going to introduce VISA card very soon.
3.10) Lease Finance:

Lease means a contractual relationship between the owner of the asset and its user for a specified period against mutually agreed upon rent. The owner is called the Lessor and the user is called the Lessee.
Lease finance is one of the most convenient source of financing of assets viz machinery, equipment vehicle, etc. The user of the assets i.e. Lessee is benefited through tax advantages, conserving working capital and preserving debt capacity. Moreover, Lease is an off-balance sheet item i.e lease amount is not shown in the balance sheet of the lessee and does not affect borrowing capacity.
Leasing enables the lessee to avail the services of a plant or equipment without making the investment or incurring debt obligation. The Lessee can use the asset by paying a series of periodic amounts called “lease payment” or “lease rentals” to the owner of the asset  at the predetermined rates and generally in advance. The payments may be made monthly or quarterly.

Jamuna Bank Ltd., the highly capitalized private Commercial Bank in Bangladesh has introduced lease finance to facilitate funding requirement of valued customers & growth of their business houses

SWIFT:
Jamuna Bank Limited is the  member of SWIFT (Society for Worldwide Inter-bank Financial Telecommunication). SWIFT is a member owned co-operative, which provides a fast and accurate communication network for financial transactions such as Letters of Credit, Fund transfer etc. By becoming a member of SWIFT, the bank has opened up possibilities for uninterrupted connectivity with over 5,700 user institutions in 150 countries around the world.
SWIFT No.: JAMUBDDH
3.11) Internal control System

With a view to reviewing and evaluation the internal control system The Bank has an internal control and compliance division managed by experience and efficient Personnel. There are three Department under the division namely Audit and Inspection Department, compliance Department and Monitoring Department.

 In order to have an effective control system the Audit and Inspection Department conduct internal audit of branches once in a year and special or snap audit at periodical intervals. The compliance Department ensures compliance with with regulatory instruction and policy of the Bank. The Audit Committee of the Board of Director reviews and evaluates the internal control process and compliance division periodically suggests measure to be taken effective internal control process.

Evaluation of Jamuna Bank:

2.1 Definitions of Bank

“Bank”

"A financial institution, which deals with money and credit. It accepts

Deposits from individuals, firms and companies at a lower rate of

Interest and gives at higher rate of interest to those who need them.”2

A financial establishment which uses money deposited by customers for investment, pays it out when required, makes loan at interest, exchanges currency, etc.

J.W Gilbert in his principles and practice banking defines a banker in these words:

“A banker is dealer in capital or more properly, a dealer in money. He is intermediate party between the borrower and the lender. He borrows of one and lends to another”.3

Sir John Paget defines banker in these terms:

“That no person or body, corporate or otherwise, can be a banker who does not

· Take deposits accounts.

· Take current accounts,

· Issue and pay Cheques and 

· Collect Cheques crossed and uncrossed for his customers”4 

· The American defined the term banker in a very broad sense as under:


“By banking, we mean the business of dealing in credits and by a ‘Bank’ we include every person, firm or company having a place of business where credits are opened by deposits of collection of money or currency. Subjects to be paid or remitted on Cheques or order, money is advanced or loaned on stocks, bonds, bullion, bill of exchange, promissory notes are received for discount or sale”.5

2.2 Evolution of Jamuna Bank 

The first phase in evolution of banking in Bangladesh sees very Competitive for the whole banking sector. Starting virtually from scratch in 1971 form of Bangladesh Bank, the country today possesses a full range of banking and financial institutions to cope with various needs of the economy.

  After opening Of Jamuna Bank Limited in Bangladesh , it is going on well, Today it has  well market condition in terms of other commercial Bank of Bangladesh.
Chapter 4
4.1) 3.5 MANAGEMENT

 Management is a distinct process consisting of activities of planning, organizing, actuating and controlling performed to determine and accomplish stated objectives with the use of human being and other resources.
The Management
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4.2) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Table

	NAME
	DISIGNATION

	Shakhawat Abu Khair Mohammad
	Chairman

	MdIslam Hossain Siraji
	Vice Chairman

	Engr A K M Mosharaf Hossain
	Director

	Engr Md Ahtiqur Rahman
	Director

	Al HAZ Nur Mohammad
	Director

	Md Tazul Islam
	Director

	Rezaul Karim Ansari
	Director

	Md Mahamudu Haque
	Director

	Farid Ahmed Akand
	Director

	Kanutush Mazumdar
	Director

	Gazi Gulam Mortuza
	Director

	Md Belal Hossain
	Director

	Md Nurul Alam
	Independent Director

	Md Motiur Rahman
	Managing Director


4.2) Cities where Jamuna Bank has its branches:

                 Table
	City
	Number of Branches

	Dhaka
	16

	Chittagong
	8

	Gazipur
	4

	Sylhet
	3

	Commilla
	3

	Others District
	10


Source: Jamuna bank   Website

As Bank Jamuna is operating with such as extensive network of 44 branches, it is not possible for it to control all activities of its different branches from one main location, that is their head office in Dhaka, so due to this reason they have divided their branches numerous  areas: the north and south, these two areas are further divided into different areas, each controlled and monitored by their respective area office. There are 44 brance in the bangladesh.

Jamuna Bank  has also established relationships with other internationally renowned banks are part of Jamuna bank list of correspondence banks. The total numbers of banks that are included in this list of correspondence are 34, in all major countries of the world and help Bank Alfalah in providing services to its customers.

Jamuna bank  being a member of both these services reiterates its commitment of providing its customers with the state of the art services. 
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4.3) RODUCTS & SERVICES:
 JBL Multi Millionaire
JBL  Money Maximize
JBL Earning Plus
JBL DPS Plus
Western Union Money Transfer

SMS Banking Service
Online Service
Credit Card
One Stop Service

Time Deposit Scheme

Monthly Savings Scheme

Deposit Insurance Scheme

Inward & Outward Remittances

Travelers Cheques

Import Finance

Export Finance

Working Capital Finance

Loan Syndication

Underwriting and Bridge Financing

Trade Finance

Industrial Finance

Foreign Currency Deposit A/C

NFCD (Non Resident Foreign Currency Deposit Account)

RFCD (Resident Foreign Currency Deposit Account)

Consumer Credit Scheme

Locker Service

4.4) Company’s Analysis

Operational Analysis

Jamuna Bank Limited is operating with an extensive network of 44 branches nationwide that are spread allover the  Country, Different varieties of services that each branch is equipped to provide include:

· Branch/Retail Banking: 

      Example: Deposits, Remittances, Lockers

· Consumer Banking:

Example: Credit Cards, Auto Loans, Home Loans

· Electronic Banking:

Example: Phone Banking, ATM's, Online Banking

· Corporate Banking:

Example: Short/Long Term Finance, Trade Finance, Structured Finance

· Treasury Finance:

Example: Money Market, FOREX Market, Investments, Govt. Securities

Some of the major cities of Pakistan and the number of branches located in these cities are as follows

Chapter 5:

5.1) FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:
Financial analysis, though varying according to the particular interests of the analyst, always involves the use of various financial statement primarily the balance sheet and income statement. The balance sheet summarizes the assets, liabilities, and owner’s equity of a business at a point in time, and thee income statement summarizes revenues and expenses of the over a particular period f time. A conceptual framework for financial analysis provides the analyst with an interlocking means for structuring the financing. 

No company can remain in business if it cannot sustain and grow its profits and banks are no exemption. If Bank Alfalah wants to become a premier banking institution and to satisfy its customers, it itself needs to become a profitable organization, that not only has growth in profits, increase its assets but also provide its shareholders with the maximum return so that they are also satisfied. 

5.2) Financial System of Bangladesh:

The financial system of Bangladesh consists of Bangladesh Bank (BB) as the central bank, 4 State Owned Commercial Banks (SCB), 5 government owned specialized banks, 30 domestic private banks, 9 foreign banks and 29 non-bank financial institutions. Moreover, MRA has given license to 298 Micro-credit Organizations. The financial system also embraces insurance companies, stock exchanges and co-operative banks

Central Bank
Bank & FIs
Capital Market
Insurance
Microfinance Institutions (MFIs)
Central Bank and its policies
Bangladesh Bank (BB), as the central bank, has legal authority to supervise and regulate all banks and non-bank financial institutions. It performs the traditional central banking roles of note issuance and of being the banker to the government and banks. Given some broad policy goals and objectives, it formulates and implements monetary policy manages foreign exchange reserves and lays down prudential regulations and conduct monitoring thereof as they apply to the entire banking system. Its prudential regulations include, among others: minimum capital requirements, limits on loan concentration and insider borrowing and guidelines for asset classification and income recognition. The Bangladesh Bank has the power to impose penalties for non-compliance and also to intervene in the management of a bank if serious problem arise. It also has the delegated authority of issuing policy directives regarding the foreign exchange regime.

     Banks / Financial Institution

Interest Rate Policy
Under the Financial sector reform program, banks are free to charge/fix their deposit (Bank /Financial Institutes) and Lending (Bank /Financial Institutes) rates other than Export Credit. At present, Loans at reduced rates (7%) are provided for all sorts of export credit since January 2004. With a view to controlling the price hike and ensuring adequate supply of essential commodities, the rate of interest on loan for import financing of rice, wheat, sugar, edible oil (crude and refined), chickpeas, beans, lentils, onions, spices , dates and powder milk has been temporarily fixed to a maximum of 12%.


Capital Adequacy of the Banks
With a view to strengthening the capital base of banks and making them prepare for the implementation of Basel-II Accord, banks are required to maintain Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets ratio 10% at the minimum with core capital not less than 5% effective from December 31, 2007. However, minimum capital requirement (paid up capital and statutory reserve) for all banks will be Tk.200 crore as per Bank Company (Amendment) Ordinance, 2007. Banks having capital shortfall will have to meet at least 50% of the shortfall by June, 2008 and the rest by June, 2009.

Revaluation reserves of held to maturity (HTM) securities (up to 50% of the revaluation reserves) has been added to the components of supplementary capital. Besides, 'Hedging the price risk of commodity transactions' has been included in Short-term self liquidating trade related contingencies.

Loan Classification and Provisioning
In order to strengthen credit discipline and bring classification and provisioning regulation in line with international standard, Bangladesh Bank issued a master circular on loan classification and provisioning through BRPD circular no 5 dated June 5, 2006. The revised policy covers an independent assessment of each loan on the basis of objective criteria and qualitative factors which is appended below :

Any Continuous Loan/Demand Loan if not repaid/renewed within the fixed expiry date for repayment will be treated as past due/overdue from the following day of the expiry date. A Continuous Loan/Demand loan/Term Loan which will remain overdue for a period of 90 days or more, will be put into the "Special Mention Account(SMA)". Interest accrued on "Special Mention Account (SMA)" will be credited to Interest Suspense Account, instead of crediting the same to Income Account.

A Continuous Loan/Demand loan is classified as 'Sub-standard' if it is past due/over due for 6 months or beyond but less than 9 months, classified as `Doubtful' if it is past due/over due for 9 months or beyond but less than 12 months and classified as `Bad/Loss' if it is past due/over due for 12 months or beyond.

If any installment(s) or part of installment(s) of a Fixed Term Loan is not repaid within the due date, the amount of unpaid installment(s) will be termed as `defaulted installment'. In case of Fixed Term Loans, which are repayable within maximum five years of time- If the amount of'defaulted installment' is equal to or more than the amount of installment(s) due within 6 (six) months, the entire loan will be classified as "Sub-standard", if the amount is equal to or more than the amount of installment(s) due within 12 (twelve) months, the entire loan will be classified as"Doubtful" and if the amount is equal to or more than the amount of installment(s) due within 18 (eighteen) months, the entire loan will be classified as "Bad/Loss".

In case of Fixed Term Loans, which are repayable in more than five years of time and if the amount of 'defaulted installment' is equal to or more than the amount of installment(s) due within 12 (twelve) months, the entire loan will be classified as "Sub-standard". If the amount is due within 18 (eighteen) months, the entire loan will be classified as "Doubtful" and if the amount is due within 24 (twenty four) months, the entire loan will be classified as "Bad/Loss".
The Short-term Agricultural and Micro-Credit will be considered irregular if not repaid within the due date as stipulated in the loan agreement. If the said irregular status continues, the credit will be classified as 'Substandard ' after a period of 12 months, as 'Doubtful' after a period of 36 months and as 'Bad/Loss' after a period of 60 months from the stipulated due date as per loan agreement.

Besides, if any situational changes occur in the stipulations in terms of which the loan was extended or if the capital of the borrower is impaired due to adverse conditions or if the value of the securities decreases or if the recovery of the loan becomes uncertain due to any other unfavourable situation, the loan will have to be classified on the basis of qualitative judgement.

5.3) Financial System of Jamuna Bank:

Jamuna bank Limited (JBL) is Banking Company registered under the Companies Act,  1994 with its Head Office at Chini Shilpa Bhaban (2nd, 3rd & 8th floor), 3, Dilkusha, C/A, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh. The Bank started its operation from 3rd June, 2001. JBL is a highly capitalized new generation  Bank started its operation with an Authorized Capital of Tk. 1600.00 million and Paid-up capital of Tk. 390.00 million,  as of December 2006 Paid-up capital of the bank raised to Tk. 1072.50 million. As of June 30, 2007, their paid up  capital is Tk. 1,072,500,000.00, share Premium is Tk. 85,800,000.00, Statutory Reserve is Tk. 249,667,430.00  and profit is Tk. 154,504,076.00. JBL undertakes all the types of banking transactions to support the development of trade and commerce in the country. JBL’s services are also available for the entrepreneurs to set up new ventures and BMRE of industrial units. The bank gives special emphasis on Export, Import, Trade Finance, SME Finance, Retail Credit and Finance to Women Entrepreneurs. To provide clientele services in respect of international trade it has established wide corresponded Banking relationship with local and foreign banks covering major trade and finance interest home and abroad.  

Jamuna Bank Limited
Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2008
                                                                     Notes           2008                               2008

                                                                                            Taka                          Taka  

Property and Assets
	Cash :
	
	1,864,959,818
	1,379,174,865

	Cash in hand (Including foreign currency)
	4
	357,873,767
	412,510,308

	Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks
	5
	1,507,086,051
	966,664,557

	(Including foreign currency)
	
	
	

	Balance with other banks and financial institutions
	6
	2,343,451,681
	1,877,145,119

	In Bangladesh
	
	1,999,453,853
	1,575,483,812

	Outside Bangladesh
	
	343,997,828
	301,661,307

	Money at call on short notice
	7
	50,000,000
	120,000,000

	Investments :
	8
	4,238,625,873
	5,390,032,112

	Government
	
	4,185,459,444
	5,346,422,108



Asset Pledge as Securities
25,000,000
-
	Others
	
	28,166,429
	43,610,004

	Loans and Advances :
	9
	21,036,861,012
	16,617,450,517

	Loans, Cash Credit, Overdrafts, etc.
	
	18,917,459,281
	14,565,241,601

	Bills Purchased & discounted
	
	2,119,401,731
	2,052,208,916

	Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures
	10
	609,023,043
	174,401,040

	Other assets
	11
	1,503,708,072
	847,200,403


Non-banking assets                                                                                        -                                  -

Total Property & Assets                                                              31,646,629,499             26405404056   
Liabilities & Capital
Borrowings from Bangladesh Bank,  other banks    12             396,123,775 
             2,298,932,000
financial institutions and agents
	Deposits and other accounts:
	13
	27,307,936,141
	20,924,021,090

	Current Accounts and other Accounts
	
	3,283,210,586
	2,625,670,594

	Bills Payable
	
	412,026,029
	354,436,223

	Savings Bank Deposits
	
	1,679,395,629
	1,407,320,842

	Fixed Deposits
	
	16,360,184,896
	13,125,131,370


Bearer Certificates of Deposit
-
-
	Short Term Deposits
	
	1,335,158,019
	833,809,802

	Deposit Under Special Scheme
	
	4,131,800,411
	2,525,084,573

	Foreign Currency Deposit
	
	106,160,571
	52,567,686

	Other liabilities
	14
	1,781,837,741
	1,525,960,928

	Total Liabilities:
	
	29,485,897,657
	24,748,914,018

	Capital / Shareholders' Equity
	
	
	

	Paid up Capital :
	
	
	

	(1,31,32,652 Ordinary shares of Taka 100 each)
	15
	1,313,265,200
	1,225,714,200


Share Premium
-
85,800,000
	Statutory Reserve
	16
	503,839,433
	330,676,426

	Revaluation Reserve
	16.A
	29,711,551
	4,907,671

	Surplus in Profit and Loss A/C
	17
	313,915,658
	9,391,741

	Total Shareholders' Equity
	
	2,160,731,842
	1,656,490,038

	Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
	
	31,646,629,499
	26,405,404,056


Jamuna Bank Ltd

Off Balance Sheet at the end of

December 2008

                                                                                                   2008                     2007

Off - Balance Sheet items                                       Note                      Taka
Taka
Contingent liabilities:
	Acceptances & Endorsements
	
	2,844,951,370
	2,208,335,800

	Letters of Guarantee
	         A
	1,690,952,145
	1,294,737,513

	Irrevocable Letters of Credit
	
	3,897,377,540
	2,308,180,010

	Bills for Collection
	
	586,890,583
	372,928,384

	Other Contingent Liabilities
	
	149,300,000
	225,078,527


Total                                                                                                       6,409,260,234           6,409,260,234
Other Commitments:
	Documentary credits and short term trade related transactions
	-
	-

	Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed
	-
	-

	Indrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities
	-
	-

	Indrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments
	-
	-


Total 


Total Off-Balance Sheet items including  liabilities                     9,169,471,638
          6,409,260,234
Jamuna Bank Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended December 31, 2008

	Interest income & Profit on investment
	19
	2,890,654,531
	2,230,265,913

	Less: Interest paid on deposits and borrowings, etc.
	20
	2,321,887,137
	1,774,389,203

	Net interest income
	
	568,767,394
	455,876,710

	Investment income
	21
	666,152,122
	474,482,522

	Commission, exchange and brokerage
	22
	419,954,455
	320,726,444

	Other operating income
	23
	97,627,800
	77,519,246

	Total operating income (A)
	
	1,752,501,771
	1,328,604,922

	Less: operating Expenditure:
	
	
	

	Salary and allowances
	24
	4 05,191,749                 
	2 32,631,098

	Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.
	25             
	7 3,978,759               
	6 2,905,322

	Legal expenses
	        
	1 ,720,530                                 
	1 ,541,252

	Postage, stamps, telecommunication, etc.
	26
	2 8,109,490                
	2 8,712,320

	Stationery, Printings, Advertisements, etc.
	27
	2 2,133,178                
	2 6,066,423

	Directors' fees & other expenses
	28
	6 ,124,142                     
	4 ,157,603

	Auditors' fees
	28.01
	1 00,000                       
	1 00,000

	Managing Director's salary & allowances
	24.A
	7 ,128,666            ,271,833       ,271,833,271,833
	6 ,271,833

	Depreciation and repairs and maintenance of bank's assets
	29               
	3 6,672,190                      30,248,608
	3 0,248,608

	Other expenses
	30            
	1 31,140,133              
	1 11,761,993

	Total operating expenses (B)
	
	
	

	Profit/(loss) before provisions (C=A-B)
	18
	1,040,202,934
	824,208,470

	Provision for loans, advances
	31
	119,485,090
	389,733,491

	Provision for Off Balance Sheet Exposures
	31 (A)
	54,902,811
	29,430,000


Provision for other assets
-
-


	Total Provision (D)
	174,387,901
	419,163,491

	Total profit  before taxes (C-D)
	865,815,033
	405,044,979


Contribution to Jamuna Bank foundation @ 0.5% of Pre.tax Profit.
32
4,329,075
-
Earnings Per Share (EPS)                                                          33
                   8.04                         38.21
Table 2: Profit Comparison for 2007 & 2008

	Description
	2008
	2007

	
	

	Profit before provisions and taxes
	1,040,202,934
	824,208,470

	Provisions
	174,387,901
	419,163,491

	Profit before taxation
	865,815,033
	405,044,979

	Taxation 
	379,594,588
	311,747,167
	

	Profit after taxations
	479,437,923
	89,110,861

	Earning per share
	Rs. 38.21
	Tk 8.04


Jamuna Bank Limited
Cash Flow Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2008
Particulars
A) Cash flows from operating activities


Notes

2008 
2007
Taka 
Taka
Interest  receipts 
2,890,654,531 
2,230,265,913
Interest payments 
(2,321,887,137) 
(1,774,389,203) Fee and commission receipts 

419,954,455 

320,726,444
Payments to employees 

(412,320,415) 
(238,902,931) Payments to suppliers 

  (62,715,925) 

(64,939,375) Income taxes paid 

(322,228,466) 
(195,926,625) Receipts  from other operating activities 
34 
   97,627,799 

 77,519,246
Payments to other operating activities 
35 
(209,841,781) 
(177,508,711)
Operating profit before changes in operating 

assets and liabilities (Note-A)(i)
Increase /Decrease in operating assets & liabilities 

79,243,061 
176,844,758
Loans and advances to the customers 
(4,419,410,495) 
(3,820,820,038) Other assets 

(334,279,203) 

(136,272,565) Deposit from other banks 

 889,911,762 


605,818,146
Deposit from customers 
5,390,745,898 
3,017,376,419
Interest payable to the customers & banks 
103,257,392 
16,014,732
Other current liabilities 
36 
(280,084,317) 
104,385,229
Cash received from operating assets and liabilities
(Note-A) (ii)

1,350,141,037 
(213,498,077)
Net cash from operating activities (A=i+ii) 
1,429,384,098 
(36,653,319)
B) Cash flows from investing activities
	Income received from investments
	590,310,706
	
	355,415,051

	Proceeds from sale of securities (gain)
	75,841,416
	
	119,067,471

	Payments for purchase of securities
	15,443,575
	
	222,423,951

	Purchase of property, plant & equipment
	(468,164,364)
	
	(65,180,367)

	Adjustment for property, plant & equipment
	6,121,645
	
	5,092,371

	Net cash from  investing activities
	219,552,978
	
	636,818,477


C) Cash flows from financing activities
Payments in borrowings 
(1,902,808,225) 
1,680,584,500
Received from Initial Public Offering (IPO) 

- 

- Cash Dividend 

- 

- Net cash from financing activities 
(1,902,808,225) 
1,680,584,500
D) Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalent   (A+B+C)

(253,871,149) 
2,280,749,658
E) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning year 
8,722,742,092 
6,441,992,433
F) Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 

(D+E) (Note - B)

8,468,870,943 
8,722,742,092
RECONCILIATION


2008 
2007
NOTE : A 
Taka 
Taka
Profit before tax 
865,815,033
405,044,979
Less : 
Investment income 
(666,152,122) 
(474,482,522)
199,662,911
(69,437,543)
Add : 
Depreciation 
27,420,715 
23,045,435
Provision for loan, advances and other assets 
174,387,901
419,163,491
Less : 
Advance income tax 
(322,228,466) 
(195,926,625)
79,243,061
176,844,758
NOTE : B
Closing cash & cash equivalent
Cash in hand (including foreign currency) 
357,873,767 
412,510,308
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks 
1,507,086,051 
966,664,557
Balance with other bank's and financial institutions 
2,343,451,681 
1,877,145,119
Money at call on short notice 
50,000,000 
120,000,000
Prize bond in hand 
609,100 
371,700
Government securities 
4,209,850,344 
5,346,050,408
8,468,870,943
8,722,7

Jamuna Bank Limited
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Statement of Changes in Equity

	Particulars
	Paid up Capital

Taka
	Statutory

Reserve Taka
	Share

Premium

Taka
	Other Reserve
	Retained Earnings

Taka
	Total Taka

	Balance as at January 01, 2008 

Changes in accounting policy 
Surplus/deficit on account of

revaluation of policies

Surplus/deficit on account of

revaluation of investments

Currency translation differences 
IPO - - - - - - - -

Dividend 
Net Profit for the period
Addition/T
	1,225,714,200

87,551,000


	330,676,426

173,163,007
	8 5,800,000

(85,800,000)


	4,907,671

24,803,880
	9 ,391,741

(1,751,000)

3 06,274,917
	1,656,490,038

24,803,880

306,274,917

173,163,007

	Balance as at December 31, 2008
	1,313,265,200
	503,839,433
	
	29,711,551
	3 13,915,658
	2,160,731,842


Jamuna Bank Ltd

Liquidity Statement

As at December 31, 2008

	Particulars
	Upto 1 month
	1 - 3 months
	3 - 12 months
	1 - 5 years
	More than 5

	Assets :
Cash in hand
Balance with other banks & financial institutions
Money at call on short notice
Investment
Loans & Advances
Fixed assets including premises, furniture 

 and fixtures Other Assets
Non-banking assets
	1,864,959,818
393,451,681
50,000,000
4,198,625,873
1,010,751,356
-
64,878,844

	-
1,100,000,000
-
-
3,742,783,418
-
331,469,009
-
	-
850,000,000
-
-
9,894,012,811
-
7,960,523
-
	-
-
-
-
5,265,293,827
514,600,784
1,099,399,696
-
	-
-
-
40,000,0
1,124,019,6
94,422,2
-
-

	Total Assets
	7,582,667,572
	5,174,252,427
	10,751,973,334
	6,879,294,307
	1,258,441,8

	Liabilities :
Borrowings from Bangladesh Bank, other banks, financial institutions and agents
Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilities
	-
6,815,950,834
26,029,758
	-
9,930,102,918

	396,123,775
6,065,581,430
809,170,231
	-
364,500,548
946,637,751
	-
4,131,800,4


	Total Liabilities
	6,841,980,592
	9,930,102,918
	7,270,875,436
	1,311,138,299
	4,131,800,4


HIGHLIGHTS OF JAMUNA BANK LIMITED
	Sl.No.
	      Particulars
	      2008
	2007

	1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
	Paid up Capital

Total Capital

Capital surplus/(deficit)

Total Assets ( excluding off balance sheet items) Total Deposits

Total Loans & Advances

Total Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

Advance Deposit Ratio

% of classified loans against Total Loans

Profit after taxation

Amount of classified loans

Provision kept against Classified loan

Provision surplus / deficit

Cost of Fund ( Deposit cost & overhead cost) Interest Earning Assets

Non-interest earning Assets Return on Assets (ROA) Return on Investment (ROI) Income from Investment Earning per Share (Taka)

Net Earning per Share ( Taka) Price Earning Ratio ( Times)

Net Asset Value ( Taka)
	1,313,265,200

2,444,338,501

392,695,301

31,646,629,499

27,307,936,141

21,036,861,012

9,169,471,638

77.04%

2.84%

479,437,923

598,309,000

296,285,000

-

12.49%

27,668,329,466

3,978,300,033

1.51%

16%

666,152,122

36.51

38.21

6.98

164.53
	582,214,200

1,872,719,991

364,612,891

26,405,404,056

20,924,021,090

16,617,450,517

6,409,260,234

79.42%

5.06%

89,110,861

840,339,000

518,852,491

-

12.26%

24,004,627,748

2,400,776,308

0.34%

8.80%

474,482,522

7.27

8.04

53.61

135.14


Schedule of tax position as on 31.12.08
	Accounting
Year
	Assessment
Year
	Tax provision as per accounts
	Tax as per assessment order
	Excess / (Shortage) of provision
	Present status

	2001
2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
	2002 - 03
2003 - 04

2004 - 05

2005 - 06

2006 - 07

2007 - 08

2008 - 09

2009- 10
	-
149,745

49,831,708

117,751,036

163,489,158

246,574,000

315,934,118

382,048,035
	-
 2,213,562

45,512,348

119,018,103

155,995,674

304,101,314

-

-
	-
(2,063,817)

4,319,360 (1,267,067)

7,493,484
(57,527,314)

  315,934,118

382,048,035
	Assessment completed
Assessment completed

Assessment completed Assessment completed Assessment completed

Assessment completed

Return is submitted

Return is yet to be submitted

	Total
	 1,275,777,800
	626,841,001
	648,936,799
	


BALANCE SHEET (Islamic Banking)

                                                     As at December 31, 2008

Amount in Taka
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
2008
2007
Cash in Hand
22,037,032
32,117,494

Balance with other bank and financial institutions
299,476
285,153

Investments:
1,702,646,302
1,123,462,497

Investment, Murabaha, Bai-Muazzal etc.
1,256,500,918
695,856,147

Bills Purchased & Discounted
446,145,384
427,606,350

Fixed Assets including premises, furniture and fixtures
8,720,544
8,634,738

Other Assets
179,301,935
194,653,145

Total Assets
1,913,005,289
1,359,153,027
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
2008
2007
Facilities from Bangladesh Bank
256,100,000
287,000,000


Deposits and other accounts
1,606,151,251
1,065,073,291
Al- Wadiah Current Accounts and other Accounts
150,957,798
192,639,015
Bills Payable
19,689,951
10,566,867
Mudaraba Savings Bank Deposits
89,339,710
96,893,720
Mudaraba Term Deposits
930,426,287
520,647,268
Mudaraba Short Notice Deposits
169,865,952
119,282,865
Deposit Under special Scheme
245,871,553
125,043,556
Other Liabilities
50,754,038
7,079,736

Total Liabilities
1,913,005,289
1,359,153,027
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
2008
2007
Contingent liabilities:

Acceptance & Endorsements
23,293,000
49,019,000
Letters of Guarantee
48,899,011
41,243,350
Irrevocable Letters of Credit
540,107,000
557,559,000
Bills for Collection
5,078,500
-
Other Contingent Liabilities
Total Off-balance sheet items
617,377,511
647,821,350
-

Islamic Banking
Profit & Loss Account
Amount in Taka
Particulars
2008
2007
Investment Income
243,027,546
178,943,270

Profit Paid on deposits and borrowings etc.
142,850,790
98,688,107

Net Investment income
100,176,756
80,255,163
Commission, exchange and brokerage
27,642,150
21,308,916

Other operating income
8,349,985
6,492,767

Total operating income
136,168,891
108,056,846
Salary and allowances
18,988,413
12,777,191

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.
2,206,339
1,972,418

Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc.
1,653,279
1,766,657

Stationery, Printing, Advertisements etc.
768,047
493,614

Depreciation and repairs and maintenance of bank's a
1,408,345
1,398,300

Other expenses
4,108,383
4,815,037

Total operating expenses
29,132,806
23,223,217
Profit before provision
107,036,085
84,833,629
JAMUNA BANK LIMITED

FIXED ASSETS SCHEDULE

AS ON 31ST DECEMBER, 2008
	Particulars
	Cost
	Dep.

Ra

te
	Depreciation
	Written dawn as on 31.12.08
	Written 

dawn as 

on 31.12.07
	

	
	Balance as on 01.01.08
	Addition

during the year
	Adjust

ment
	Balance as on

31.12.08
	
	Balance as on 01.01.08
	Charged

during the

year
	Adjust

ment
	Balance as on 31.12.08
	
	
	

	Land & Building
	-
	396,502,446
	-
	3 96,50

2,446
	0%
	-
	-
	2,733,599
	-
	396,502,46
	-
	

	Furniture & Fixture
	114,606,999
	34,442,294
	6,219,052
	1 42,830

,241
	10%
	2 8,069

,958
	9,769,229
	2,202,522
	35,105,588
	107,724,653
	86,537,041
	

	Equipment & Mach.
	113,468,99
	34,835,643
	4,761,

205
	1 43,543,428
	15%
	3 7,958

,897
	13,364,794
	26,309
	49,121,169
	94,422,259
	75,510,093
	

	Vehicles
	20,731,900
	2,359,200
	1 03,818
	22,987,282
	20%
	8 ,606

,697
	4,182,688
	-
	12,763,076
	10,224,206
	12,125,203
	

	Books
	681,737
	24,781
	--
	706,518
	20%
	453,034
	104,005
	
	557,039
	149,479
	2 28,703
	

	Total
	249,489

,626
	11,084,075
	11,084,075
	7 06569,

915
	
	75,088,586
	27,420,716
	4,962,4

30
	97,546,872
	609,023

,043
	174,401,040
	


Result Summery:

	Particulars
	 Year 2004
	Year 2005
	Year 2006
	Year 2007
	Year 2008

	Income Statement:
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest Income
	1004.34
	1374.38
	2095.51
	2230.6
	2890.65

	Interest Expenses
	726.06
	1045.46
	1606.88
	1774.39
	2321.85

	Net Interest Income
	278.29
	328.92
	488.63
	455.87
	568.77

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income from Investment
	80.40
	126.30
	255.66
	474.84
	666.15

	 Non  interest Income
	153.74
	249.59
	398.73
	398.25
	517.58

	Non Interest Expense
	203.64
	284.87
	441.70
	504.40
	712.30

	 Net Investment Income
	30.54
	91.02
	212.69
	368.33
	471.431

	 Contribution to Jamuna Bank foundation
	-
	-
	-
	-
	4.33

	Profit Before  Tax And Provision
	308.83
	419.94
	701.32
	824.20
	1035.87

	Provision for loan, Advances and Assets
	35.13
	56.63
	201.36
	419.29
	174.39

	Provision foe Tax
	117.75
	163.49
	246.57
	315.92
	382.09

	Profit after Tax
	155.95
	199.82
	253.40
	89.11
	479.44

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Balance Sheet:
	
	
	
	
	

	Authorized Capital
	1600.00
	1600.00
	1600.00
	4000.00
	4000.00

	Paid Up Capital
	429
	429
	1072
	1225.15
	1313.27

	Reserve Fund
	245.65
	487.76
	629.33
	647.01
	1131.07

	Shareholders Equity
	607.32
	807.10
	1562.47
	1656.66
	2126.73

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Deposit( Core & Banks)
	10450.16
	14454.13
	17284.81
	20924.73
	27307.94

	Advance
	6722.80
	11011.25
	12796.76
	16617.45
	21036.86

	Investment
	1163.70
	2037.84
	2552.67
	5390.03
	4238.63

	Fixed Assets
	97.99
	106.46
	137.36
	174.40
	609.02

	Total Asset( Excluding Contra)
	13491.52
	16863.49
	20157.20
	26405.40
	31646.63

	
	
	
	
	
	

	 Contigent Liability And Commitment
	2903.96
	5445.68
	6574.38
	6409.26
	9168.47

	
	
	
	
	
	

	 Foreign Exchange Business
	
	
	
	
	

	Import Business
	7923.90
	12151.90
	15457.67
	22191.84
	30311.71

	Export Business
	4790.80
	6521.80
	11583.24
	13990.33
	18614.48

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Adequacy :
	
	
	
	
	

	 Risk Weighted Asset
	5846.56
	9010.43
	11506.11
	15081.22
	20516.43

	Tier I Capital( Capital & Shareholders Equity)
	607.32
	807.319
	1562.54
	1654.28
	2131.02

	 Tier II Capital
	67.33
	109.32
	139.36
	221.14
	313.02

	Tier III Capital
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Total Capital
	674.65
	916.53
	1701.83
	1872.72
	2444.34

	Tier I Capital Ratio
	10.39
	8.96
	13.58
	10.95
	10.39

	Tier II Capital Ratio
	1.15
	1.21
	1.21
	1.47
	1.52

	Tier III Capital Ratio
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Total Capital Ratio
	11.54
	10.17
	14.79
	12.42
	11.91

	
	
	
	
	
	

	 Credit Quality:
	
	
	
	
	

	Volume of non Performing Loan
	2.83
	51.05
	643.37
	840.34
	598.31

	% of NPLs to Loan & Advances
	.04
	.46
	5.03
	5.06
	2.84

	Provision for Un classified Loan
	67
	113.87
	139.03
	220.81
	298.13

	 Provision for classified Loan
	1.04
	10.21
	181.47
	518.85
	296.29

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Share Information:
	
	
	
	
	

	Number of share of outstanding
	4.29
	4.29
	10.73
	12.25
	13.13

	Earning per share(EPS)
	36.35
	46.58
	31.94
	8.04
	38.21

	Book Value per share
	141.57
	188.14
	145.68
	135.14
	164.53

	Market Value per Share
	-
	-
	391.58
	431.02
	266.51

	Price Earning ratio( times)
	
	
	12.26
	53.61
	6.98

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Dividend:
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash dividend
	-
	1.5%
	-
	-
	-

	Stock Dividend
	-
	1:4
	1:7
	1:14
	1: 4.26

	
	
	
	
	
	

	 Other Information
	
	
	
	
	

	Number of Branches
	19
	23
	29
	35
	39

	Number of employee
	447
	525
	631
	681
	935

	Number of correspondence
	333
	390
	643
	715
	715

	
	
	
	
	
	

	 Total Income
	1397.27
	1727.20
	2749.90
	3002.99
	4074.39

	Total Expenditure
	1088.44
	1307.26
	2048.58
	2278.76
	3034.19

	Operating Profit
	308.83
	419.07
	701.32
	824.21
	1040.20

	Profit Before Tax
	273.70
	363.31
	499.91
	405.04
	865.82

	 Profit after Tax
	155.95
	199.82
	253.40
	89.11
	479.44


 Ratio Analysis:

7.2 Ratio Analysis

Financial analysis is the process of identifying the financial strengths and weakness of the firm by properly establishing relation ship between the items of balance sheet and profit and loss account, in order to make rational decision in keeping with the objective of the organization, for that purpose the management use analytical tools. To evaluate the financial condition and performance of the business entity, the financial analyst needs to perform "checkups" on various aspects of the business financial health.

A tools frequently used during these checkups is a financial ratio analysis, which relates two piece of financial data by dividing one quantity by the other we calculate ratios because in this way we get a comparison that may prove more useful than the raw number by themselves. The business itself and outside providers of capital (creditors and investors) all undertake financial statement analysis. The type of analysis varies according to the specific interest party involved. The nature of analysis is depending at the purpose of analyst.

Ratio Analysis of Jamuna Bank:

Some of the ratios calculated for Jamuna Bank  are as follows:

Income/Expense Ratio: The income to expense ratio is 21.25in 2008, which was from 13.05 in 2007 and is thus very favorable as now Jamuna  Bank  has more income to pay off its expenses from.

Advances/Deposits Ratio: This ratio is 8.95% in 2008, and it was in 8.95%in 2007 that is same as before. This ratio shows that for every 100 deposits for Jamuna Bank , a liability, there are 29.36 ( in response to previous year )advances, an asset for  Jamuna Bank. As this ratio has increased, it shows that Jamuna Bank now as more capacity to pay off its total deposits from the advances it gives out.

Return on Total Assets: This ratio measures the extent to which total assets of the bank were used to generate income available for common stockholders. This ratio is 2.58% in 2008, which was 1.74%. It increase in 2008

Return on Total Equity: This ratio like the ROA previously calculated is a debt management ratio and is calculated by dividing the net income available for common stockholders by the common stockholders equity. This Ratio is 25.12% in 2008, which was 5.5% in 2007.
 The whole ratio Chart are given Bellow:

	Particulars:
	2008
	2007
	2005
	2004
	2003

	Performance Ratio (%):
	
	
	
	
	

	Return of Average Assets
	2.98
	1.74
	2.79
	2.39
	2.35

	Return of Average Assets( after Tax)
	1.65
	.38
	1.37
	1.32
	1.34

	Return of Average Equity( after Tax)
	25.12
	5.54
	21.39
	28.25
	29.46

	Net Interest Margin (average)
	4.78
	4.39
	4.39
	3.39
	3.24

	Net Interest Margin
	4.66
	3.88
	4.06
	2.93
	2.87

	Efficiency Ratio
	40.64
	37.96
	38.64
	38.40
	39.74

	Return on Investment
	15.72
	8.80
	10.02
	6.20
	6.91

	Profit Margin
	21.25
	13.05
	18018
	21.03
	19.59

	Return on risk weighted Assets
	4.22
	2.69
	4.35
	4.03
	4.68

	Burden Coverage
	58.96
	63.59
	74.43
	72.52
	65.66

	Ratio of Fees Income
	10.31
	10.34
	11.96
	11.00
	9.57

	Interest Yield
	13.77
	12.77
	13.87
	10.68
	11.58

	Margin cost of Fund
	8.38
	7.64
	8.98
	6.82
	7.08

	Burden cost of Fund
	9.27
	8.13
	9.67
	7.22
	7.63

	Burden  yield on Advance
	14.73
	13.58
	15.34
	12.09
	11.99

	Profit on Lending
	5.46
	5.45
	5.67
	4.87
	4.27

	Yield on Advance
	14.40
	13.15
	14.81
	12.72
	13.04

	Interest Expense to Total Expense
	76.52
	77.87
	78.44
	79.97
	81.29

	Salary Expense to Total  overhead expense
	57.89
	47.36
	43.39
	43.33
	48.46

	Salary Expense to fees income
	98.18
	74.49
	58.21
	59.21
	73.81

	Expenses Coverage
	72.66
	78.96
	90.27
	86.52
	75.50

	Return on Paid up Capital
	36.51
	7.27
	23.63
	46.58
	36.35

	Productivity Ratio
	35.24
	29.68
	32.74
	31.37
	29.19

	Per Employee Deposit
	29.21
	24.30
	28.81
	27.53
	23.38

	Staff per Branch
	23.97
	24.60
	21.43
	21.88
	22.33

	Capital to Deposit (%)
	8.95
	8.95
	9.85
	6.34
	6.34

	Asst Quality Ratio:
	
	
	
	
	

	Non Performing Loan to Total Loan
	2.84
	5.66
	5.03
	.46
	.04

	Loan less Reserve to total
	2.83
	4.45
	2.50
	1.13
	1.01

	Loan less Reserve to NPL
	99.35
	88.02
	49.81
	242.98
	2404.21

	Loan to Deposit
	77.04
	79.42
	74.03
	76.08
	64.33

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Ratio/ Regulatory Capital Ratio:
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Risk based capital ratio
	11.91
	12.42
	14.79
	10.17
	11.54

	Tier I  risk based capital  ratio
	10.39
	10.95
	13.58
	8.96
	10.39

	Leverage  capital Ratio(capital)
	10.42
	10.98
	9.76
	15.25
	15.91

	Leverage  capital Ratio(Equity)
	11.95
	12.45
	10.63
	17.23
	17.67

	Average Equity To Average Assets
	6.58
	6.91
	6.40
	4.66
	4.55


Financial performance of JBL:

Profit:

In 2008 Jamuna Bank Limited Posted an operating profit  of 1040.20 million as against  Tk 824.21 million in 2007 with a spectacular  growth of 26.21 percent over the receding year .

7.4.3
Net Profit Margin:

This ratio measure the firm’s profitability of sales/ interest earned after taking account of all expenses and income taxes.

This ratio can be calculated as:

Net profit margin ration = Net Profit after taxes / interest earned

Table5

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Net profit Margin %
	19.59
	21.03
	18.18
	13.05
	21.25
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Graph: Net Profit Margin:

Capital Structure:

Jamuna Bank Limited Has a Conviction of Maintaining a strong Capital  base in caring an operation on June 03,2001 in paid up capital. of Tk 390.00 million divided into 3.90 million ordinary share of Tk 100 each. The Authorized capital of the Bank was 1600.00 million and in 2007 it increased & stood at Tk40000.00 million divided into 40 million ordinary  shares of t6k 100 each. The Bank paid up capital as at 31 December,2008 stood at 1313.27 million. Tk 429.00 million was raised through initial public of 4.29 million ordinary Share of Tk 100 each. With a premium of Tk 20 each while Tk 214.50 million

Was raised by issue of bonus share in the ratio of 1: 4, on the holding of 8.58 million ordinary  share as on 31.12.2005. as on 31.12.2008 the total shareholders equity and reserve stood at 2160.73 million and total Banks capital stood at  Tk 24444.34.

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Ratio
	11.54
	10.17
	14.79
	12.42
	11.91
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 Graph: Loan and Advances

7.4.9
Loan to deposit Ratio:

This ratio show that how much efficiently the bank advances the deposits of their customer to borrower. 

It is calculated as.

Advances deposit ratio = Advances/ deposit

Table

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Loan to deposits ratio%
	63.04
	76.18
	74.03
	79.42
	77.04


Graph: Loan to Deposit
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Loan and Advances:

 Though there was an unfavorable Business duo to political turmoil throughout the year, JBL was in constant effort to explore in different Area o f credit operation and could raise the credit portfolios to Tk 21036.86 million in 2008 with an increase Tk 4419.41 million(26.59%) over that of preceding year.

Graph: Earning per Share (EPS)

Earning per Share in 2008 is Tk 38.21 which is seen in figure that was more by Tk 30.16 in terms of 2007.

Earning per share Graph: 

	Year
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	TK
	46.58
	31.94
	8.04
	38.21
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Graph: Earning per Share (EPS)

Share price:

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Tk
	-
	-
	351.58
	431.02
	266.31
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            Figure: Asset Value per Share
7.4.10 Price to earning Ratio:

This ratio show the relation ship b/w face price per share and earning per share. This ratio is calculated as: Price to earning ratio= face price of share/earning per share

Table13

	Year
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Price to earning Ratio
	12.26
	53.61
	6.98
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 Graph:  price to earning Ratio
7.4.5 Return On Assets:

This ratio shows the efficiency of organization that how efficiently utilizes their assets. This ratio relates profits to assets.

It is calculated as: 

Profit after Tax/Total Assets

Table7

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Return on assets
	2.35
	2.39
	2.70
	1.74
	2.98
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Explanation: This ratio shows us the relative efficiency with which a firm utilizes its total assets to generate revenue. We can see that the ratio is going high and which is a good sign and shows that JBL is utilizing its assets efficiently.

7.4.7
Debit to Equity Ratio:

This ration shows the amount contributed by creditors and shareholders. It shows to what extent the firm is using borrowed money. It is computed simply dividing the total debt of the fire by its shareholders equity. 

This calculated as.

Total debt/shareholder’s equity

Table9

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Debt to equity ratio
	17.67
	17.23
	10.63
	12.45
	11.95
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Investment from 2004 to 2008:
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                               Figure: Investment from 2004 to 2008

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Million in Tk
	1005.64
	2000.00
	2500.00
	5500.00
	4200.00


7.4.12
Dividend yield:

Anticipated annual dividend divided by the market price of the stock.

It is calculated as.

Dividend yield =Total dividend/ market price

Table14

	Year
	2004
	2005
	2006
	2007
	2008

	Dividend Yield
	2.3
	3.32
	1.63
	2.45
	0.23




Million in Tk:

Graph: Economic Add Value

                                                          Year

Chapter 6:

 Half Yearly Financial condition of Jamuna Bank Limited:

JAMUNA BANK LIMITED BALANCE SHEET (Un-Audited) As at June 30, 2009
	PROPERTY AND ASSETS
	June 2009
Taka
	December 2008
Taka

	Cash :
Cash in hand (Including foreign currency)
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks
(Including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial institutions
In Bangladesh
Outside Bangladesh
Money at call on short notice
Investments :
Government
Asset Pledge as Securities
Others
Loans and Advances :
Loans, Cash Credit, Overdrafts, etc. Bills Purchased & discounted
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures
Other assets
Non-banking assets
Total Assets:
	382,737,036
1,668,665,225
2,995,250,862
	357,873,767
1,507,086,051
2,343,451,681

	
	2,681,099,111
314,151,751
	1,999,453,853
343,997,828

	
	1,210,000,000
4,980,045,500
	50,000,000
4,238,625,873

	
	4,928,041,346
25,000,000
27,004,154
	4,185,459,444
25,000,000
28,166,429

	
	24,722,631,680
	21,036,861,012

	
	22,553,621,802
2,169,009,878
	18,917,459,281
2,119,401,731

	
	648,184,073
1,675,573,604
-
	609,023,043
1,503,708,072
-

	
	38,283,087,980
	31,646,629,499


OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

(Un-Audited)

As at June 30, 2009

	Contingent liabilities:
	June 2009
Taka
	December 2008
Taka

	Acceptances & Endorsements

Letters of Guarantee Irrevocable Letters of Credit Bills for Collection

Other Contingent Liabilities
Other memorandum in hand:
Bangladesh Shanchaya Patra

US Dollar Investment Bond

Total
	3,963,004,526

1,777,781,526

2,940,577,066

753,104,418

959,000
	2,844,951,370

1,690,952,145

3,897,377,540

586,890,583

-

	
	9,435,426,536
	9,020,171,638

	
	159,700,000

2,100,000
	147,200,000

2,100,000

	
	161,800,000
	149,300,000

	
	9,597,226,536
	9,169,471,638

	
	


   


JAMUNA BANK LIMITED
                    

  BALANCE SHEET (Un-Audited)
                                

  As at June 30, 2009
	LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
	June 2009
TAKA
	December 2008
TAKA

	Liabilities:
Borrowings from Bangladesh Bank,  other banks, financial institutions and agents
Deposits and other accounts:
Current Accounts and other Accounts
Bills Payable
Savings Bank Deposits
Fixed Deposits
Short Term Deposits
Deposit Under Special Scheme
Foreign Currency Deposit
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities: Capital/Shareholders' Equity Paid up Capital :
(1,31,32,652 Ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each) Share Premium Account
Statutory Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
Surplus in Profit and Loss A/C
Total Shareholders' Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
	381,154,661
32,571,285,187
	396,123,775
27,307,936,141

	
	3,555,182,332
311,214,715
1,976,870,448
20,096,649,205
1,532,211,360
5,058,447,556
40,709,571
	3,283,210,586
412,026,029
1,679,395,629
16,360,184,896
1,335,158,019
4,131,800,411
106,160,571

	
	2,163,745,617
35,116,185,465
	1,781,837,741
29,485,897,657

	
	1,313,265,200
-
503,839,433
539,584,499
810,213,383
	1,313,265,200
-
503,839,433
29,711,551
313,915,658

	
	3,166,902,515
	2,160,731,842

	
	38,283,087,980
	31,646,629,499

	
	
	


JAMUNA BANK LIMITED     CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Un-Audited) for the half year ended June 30, 2009
	A) Cash flows from operating activities
Interest  received

Interest paid

Fees and commission received Payments to employees Payments to suppliers

Income taxes paid

Received  from other operating activities

Payments for other operating activities

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities (Note-A)(i)
Increase /Decrease in operating assets & liabilities
Loans and advances to the customers

Other assets

Deposit from other banks

Deposit from customers

Interest payable to the customers & banks

Other current liabilities

Cash received from operating assets and liabilities (Note-A) (ii) Net cash flows from operating activities (A=i+ii)
B)  Cash flows from investing activities Income received from investments Proceeds from sale of securities( Gain) Payments for purchase of securities Purchase of property, plant & equipment

Adjustment for property, plant & equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
C) Cash flows from financing activities
Payments for  borrowings

Received from Initial Public Offerings (IPO) Writing Off Loan & Advances

Net cash used in financing activities
D) Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)
E)  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period (1st January) F)  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period  (D+E)
	June 2009
Taka
	June 2008
Taka

	
	1,778,041,984 (1,473,349,756)
232,280,371 (226,265,510) (37,839,091) (217,797,797)
59,586,882
(118,925,512)
	1,299,027,837 (1,084,344,126)
216,751,906 (168,333,736) (28,578,857) (137,742,806)
45,810,948
(104,740,180)

	
	(4,268,429)
	37,850,986

	
	(3,685,770,669)
45,932,266 (341,187,275)
5,571,825,731
32,710,590 (88,999,204)
	(2,732,680,251) (4,625,134)

228,575,189
2,691,599,152
61,769,765 (36,202,714)

	
	1,534,511,439
	208,436,007

	
	1,530,243,010
	246,286,993

	
	441,257,049
329,134,473
1,162,275 (55,877,115)
-
	269,743,770
25,132,550 (421,175,448) (25,988,804)
-

	
	715,676,682
	(152,287,932)

	
	(14,969,114)

-
-
	(1,486,784,667)

- (319,636,090)

	
	(14,969,114)
	(1,806,420,757)

	
	2,230,950,578
	(1,712,421,696)

	
	8,468,870,943
	8,722,742,092

	
	10,699,821,521
	7,010,320,396


JAMUNA BANK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT  (Un-Audited)                                                                                                                                                                  for the half year ended June 30, 2009
	Particulars
	June 2009
Taka
	June 2008
Taka

	Interest income

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings, etc.
Net interest income
Investment income

Commission, exchange and brokerage

Other operating income

Total operating income
Salary and allowances

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. Legal expenses

Postage, stamps, telecommunication, etc. Stationery, Printings, Advertisements, etc. Directors' fees & other expenses

Auditors' fees

Managing Director's salary & allowances

Depreciation and repairs and maintenance of bank's assets

Other expenses

Total operating expenses
Profit before provisions
Provision for loans, advances and others

Total profit  before taxes
Provision for taxation for the period

Net profit after taxation
Retained surplus brought forward from previous year 2008

Retained Surplus
	1,778,041,984

1,473,349,756
	1,299,027,837

1,084,344,126

	
	304,692,228
	214,683,711

	
	770,391,523

232,280,371

59,586,882
	294,876,320

216,751,906

45,810,948

	
	1,366,951,004
	772,122,885

	
	224,440,510
43,563,494

982,349

15,862,007

14,526,239

4,324,407

-

1,825,000

21,557,099

72,665,092
	164,133,736

35,741,747

1,255,677

14,702,175

10,049,501

3,214,452

-

4,200,000

16,496,954

64,528,304

	
	399,746,197
	314,322,546

	
	967,204,807
199,727,190

767,477,617
271,179,892

496,297,725
313,915,658
	457,800,339
175,845,000

281,955,339
204,072,848

77,882,491
9,391,741

	
	810,213,383
	87,274,232

	
	
	

	Earnings Per Share (EPS)
	30.60
	6.35


HIGHLIGHTS OF JAMUNA BANK LIMITED
	Sl. No.
	Particulars
	June-2009
	2008
	2007
	2006

	1
	Paid up Capital
	162.19
	131.33
	122.57
	107.25

	2
	Total Capital
	323.50
	244.43
	187.27
	170.18

	3
	Total Assets
	3,828.31
	3,164.66
	2,640.54
	2,015.70

	4
	Total Deposits
	3,257.13
	2,730.79
	2,092.40
	1,728.48

	5
	Total Loans & Advances
	2,472.26
	2,103.69
	1,661.75
	1,279.66

	6
	Total Contingent Liabilities & Commitments
	959.72
	916.95
	640.93
	657.44

	7
	Amount of classified loans
	88.43
	59.83
	84.03
	64.34

	8
	Income from Investment
	77.04
	66.62
	47.45
	25.57

	9
	Return on Investment (ROI)
	15%
	16%
	8.80%
	10.02%

	10
	Advance Deposit Ratio
	75.90%
	77.04%
	79.42%
	74.03%

	11
	% of classified loans against Total Loans
	3.58%
	2.84%
	5.06%
	5.03%

	12
	Capital Adequacy Ratio
	13.53%
	11.91%
	12.42%
	14.79%


Chapter 7
7. a)

Jamuna Bank Limited
Notes to the Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2008
1   Legal Status and Nature of the Company:
Jamuna Bank Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh on 2nd  April in the period 2001 as a public Limited Company under Companies Act, 1994.The Bank within the stipulations laid down by the Bank Companies Act, 1991 and directives as received from Bangladesh Bank and applicable to it from time to time provides all types of commercial banking services. The Bank has  thirty  nine  (39)  branches  (including  2  Islamic  Banking  Branches),  with  no  overseas branches as at  December 31, 2008.

2   Nature of the Business:
i)  The principal activities of the bank are providing all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers.

ii) The other activities of the bank are providing of all kinds of Islamic banking services to its customers.

Significant Accounting Polices – Disclosure under Bangladesh Accounting Standard
(BFRS/BAS) “Presentation of Financial Statements”.
 3 Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements: Conventional Banking:
The financial statements of the Bank are prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost convention and in accordance with First Schedule (Sec- 38) of Bank Companies Act, 1991 as amended by Bangladesh Bank (Central Bank) BRPD Circular No. 14 dated June 25, 2003, other  Bangladesh Bank  circulars,  International Financial Reporting Standards adopted as Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS), the Companies Act, 1994, the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Securities and Exchange Rule 1987 and other laws and regulations applicable in Bangladesh.

Islamic Banking:
The bank operates Islamic Banking in 2 (two) branches designated for the purpose in complying with the rules of Islamic Shariah. The financial statements of the branches have also been prepared as per Bank Companies Act, 1991, Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), Financial  Accounting  Standard  issued  by  the  Accountancy  &  Auditing  organization  for Islamic Financial Institutions for which a separate set of books and records are being maintained. Separate  statements of  accounts  of  consolidated accounts  of  2  (two)  Islamic Banking branches are enclosed herewith.

Functional and presentation currency:
These financial statements are presented in Taka, which is the Bank’s functional currency.

Use of estimates and judgments:
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimatesand assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised and in any future periods affected.

4.  Revenue Recognition:
The revenue during the year are recognized as following to satisfy all conditions of revenuerecognized   as   provided   in   Bangladesh   Accounting   Standards   (BAS)   18“Revenue Recognition”

I.   Interest is calculated on daily product on unclassified loans and advances but charged on quarterly and monthly basis, where applicable.

II.   Interest is charged on classified loans and advances by crediting interest suspense account as per BRPD Circular No 16 of 1998 and such interest were not taken into income account. Interest on credit card outstanding is calculated on daily product but charged on monthly basis.

III.   Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization.

IV.   Profit is charged on unclassified investments on daily product basis and charged to the clients on quarterly and monthly basis, where applicable.

V.   Profit is calculated on classified investments and is being credited to profit suspense account.

  Earnings per Share (EPS):
Earning per share has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number ofOrdinary Shares outstanding during the year in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 33 “Earning per Share” which has been shown on the profit and loss account.
 Cash Flow Statement:
Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BFRS/BAS) 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and the cash flow from the operating activities has been presented under direct method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rules 1987.

5.
- Foreign Currency Conversion:
Transaction in Foreign Currencies are translated into Bangladesh Taka and recorded at the ruling Exchange rates applicable on the dates of transaction and are in accordance with
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BFRS/BAS) – 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”.

  i) Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into Taka at                                                   the mid rates at the balance sheet date.

ii)
Transaction in  foreign  currencies are  converted into  Taka  currency at  the  rate  of exchange prevailing on the dates of such transactions and any gains losses thereon are adjusted to revenue through foreign exchange trading account.

6. - Investments:
Investment values and classifications are assessed  under  the  Bangladesh  AccountingStandards (BAS) 25 “Accounting for Investments” which is shown below:

Items
Assessment of Accounting
Govt. Treasury Bills, Market value

Prize Bond & Other Bonds
Cost prize, Shares & Debentures
Cost or market prize whichever is lower

7. - Loans & Advances and Provision:
Interest is calculated on daily product basis but charged and accounted for quarterly on
accrual basis. Interest on classified loans is kept in interest suspense account as per Bangladesh Bank guidelines and such interest is not accounted for as income until realized from borrowers. Interests are not charged on bad / loss loans as per instructions of Bangladesh Bank. Advances are stated at gross value.

Provision  for  loans  and  advances  is  made  on  the  basis  of  year-end  review  by  the management and on the basis of instructions contained in Bangladesh Bank BCD Circular No-  34  of  1989,  BCD  Circular  No.  20 dated  27/12/1994,  BRPD  Circular  No-12  dated

04/09/1995, and BRPD Circular No- 16  dated  06/12/1998, BRPD  Circular  No-9  dated

14/05/2001 and BRPD Circular No-8 of 2005 at the following rates:

Particulars 
Rate
	General Provision on unclassified loan and advances
	1%

	Provision on Small and Medium Enterprise Financing (SMEF)
	1%

	Provision on Housing Finance, Loans for professionals and Small Enterprise
	2%

	Provision on other consumer financing
	5%

	Provision on short term Agri. Credit & Micro Credit other than Bad Loss
	5%

	Provision on Special Mention Account Loan and Advance
	5%

	Provision on substandard loan and advance
	20%

	Provision on doubtful loans and advances
	50%

	Provision on bad / loss loans and advances
	100%

	Provision on Off-Balance Sheet Exposure
	1%


8.Contingent
Liabilities,
Commitments
and
other
Off
Balance
Sheet settlements:
In accordance with other banking companies, the Bank conducts its operation by issuing acceptance, guarantees, performance bonds and indemnities.

  - Property, Plant and Equipment and their Depreciation:
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized as assets in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) 16 “Property Plant and Equipment”.

Depreciation is charged at the following annual rates on written down method on all fixed assets except  land. Depreciation has been charged  on  addition  during  the  period  when respective assets put into use and in case of sale, upto the date of sale. Straight line depreciation method will be implemented in financial year 2009.

Name of the Assets:
Rate of Depreciation
Furniture & fixture
 10% Office equipment
15% Motor Vehicle
 20% Books
 20%

9.  - Leasing:
JBL has finance lease under its credit portfolio. Amount disbursed to lessees under finance lease are recorded as lease finance and shown along with loans and advances. At present interest is charged on the leased amounts on daily product basis and monthly rentals are received from the lessees such finance. BAS–17 is yet to be fully complied by the JBL. Implementation of BAS–17 Lease is under consideration.

10.-Taxation:
a) - Current Tax
Provision for Tax has been made in accordance with the Finance Act, 2005 primarily by applying 45% and it is computed as per Income Tax Ordinance 1984.

b) - Deferred Tax
Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of income tax payable in future period in respect of taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are the amount of income tax recoverable in future periods  in  respect  of  taxable  temporary  differences.  Deferred  tax  assets  and liabilities  are  recognized  for  the  future  tax  consequences  of  timing  differences  arising between the carrying values of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. The impact on the account of changes in the deferred tax assets and liabilities has also been recognized in the profit and loss account.

11.Retirement Benefit to the Employees:
Provident Fund
Provident Fund benefits are given to the Bank employees in accordance with the locally registered Provident Fund Rules.

Superannuation Fund
The Bank operates a Social Security Superannuation Fund and it operated by separate Board of Trustees and Superannuation Fund Rules of the Bank.

 Gratuity: JBL has a gratuity scheme, which covers all of its permanent employees of the Bank. The company made provision to meet-up claim of out going employee.

- Consolidation Procedure:
A  separate  set  of  records  for  consolidating  the  Statement  of  Affairs  and  Income  and Expenditure of the Branches are maintained at the Head office of the Bank in Dhaka from which these accounts are drawn up.

- Statement of Liquidity:
The  liquidity  statement  has  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  the  remaining  maturity grouping of the value of the assets and liabilities as on 31st December, 2008.

12.  Audit Committee:
a)  - Particulars of Audit Committee
An Audit Committee was constituted by the Board of the Directors of the Bank in its 20thmeeting held on 06-03-2003. Subsequently, in accordance with BRPD circular no-12 and BRPD circular no-16 dated 10-06-2003 and 24-07-2003 respectively issued by the Bangladesh Bank, the Board of Directors in its 29th meeting held on 19-10-2003 reconstituted the Audit Committee. The Board reconstituted the said Committee in its 108th meeting held on 27-08-
           c)   - Steps taken for implementation of an effective internal control procedure of
the Bank:
The Committee reviewed the reports of the Internal Control and Compliance Division in operation of different Branches and Divisions of Head Office of the Bank, assessed risks associated with credit operation, worked out strategies to mitigate those risks and placed reports in the same before the Board of Directors at intervals so as to ensure compliance and mitigate risks  in  operations. The  Audit Committee also  evolved the  policy outlines for establishing corporate governance through the Board of Directors. In accomplishing the responsibilities the Audit Committee adheres to the guidelines contained in BRPD circular No 12 dated 23.12.2002 by Bangladesh Bank.

7.b)

Risk Management:

The risk Management of Jamuna  Bank  Limited  evolves  identification,  measurement,monitoring and controlling risks to ensure that:

•
The Bank’s risk exposure is within the limits established by Board of Directors.
•

The Bank’s risk taking decisions are in line with the business strategy and objectives set by Board of Directors of the Bank as well as Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

•
The Bank’s risk taking decisions are explicit and clear.

•
Sufficient capital as a buffer is available to take risk.

1. Market Risk:
Jamuna Bank Limited is exposed to market Risk in variety of ways. Market Risk exposure is
mainly explicit in portfolio of Bangladesh Government Treasury Bills and treasury Bonds held under HFT (held for trading) conversely, Market Risk is implicit such as interest Rate  Risk due to mismatch of loans and Foreign Exchange Risk due to maturity mismatch of foreign currency positions. The portfolios are being revalued at an interval at current market price of marking to market basis. Besides, the portfolios have been synchronized in line with Bangladesh Bank guidelines of risk based Capital Adequacy (BASEL-II) for interest rat risk and foreign exchange risk.

2. Interest Rate Risk:

Interest Rate Risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions. The Bank’s lending, funding and investment activities give arise to Interest Rate Risk. The Bank Assess Interest Rate Risk in earning perspective which is traditional approach to Interest Rate Risk assessment and obtained by measuring the changes in the Net Interest Income (NII) on Net Interest Margin (NIM) i.e. the different between total interest income and the total interest expenses.

3. Foreign Exchange Risk:
The Bank is also exposed to Interest Rate Risk, which arises from the maturity mismatching of foreign currency position. It also includes settlement risk. The total holding position is being revalued on marking to market on monthly basis.

4. Credit Risk:
It arises mainly form lending, trade finance, leasing and treasury businesses. This can be described as potential loss arising from the failure of a counter party to perform as per contractual agreement with the Bank. The failure may result from unwillingness of the counter party or decline in his/ her financial condition. Therefore, the Bank’s credit risk management activities have been designed to address all these issues. Steps have already been implemented of Bangladesh Bank requirements and some are in under process.

A typical Credit Risk management framework in Jamuna Bank Limited is broadly categorized into following main component:

a)   Board’s and senior management oversight. b)  Organizational Structure.

c)   Systems
and
Procedures
for
identification
acceptance,
measurement, monitoring and control risks.

The Bank board of Directors approved Credit Risk strategy and significant policies relating to Credit Risk. The Board of Directors of Jamuna Bank Limited also set the parameter to maintain Bank’s overall credit exposures. The Bank also operates within a sound and well-defined criteria for new credits as well as the expansion of existing credits.

5. Liquidity risk:
Jamuna Bank Limited considers Liquidity Risk a major risk for Bank. It arises when the cushion provided by  the  liquid assets are  not  sufficient enough to  meet its  obligation. The Board of Directors  of  the  Bank  enunciated  specific  polices  on  particular  aspects  of  liquidity  risk management such as (a) composition of Assets and Liabilities (b) diversification and stabilities of liabilities  (c)  access  to  enter-bank  market.  The Board  of  Directors  of  Jamuna  Bank  Limited approved Liquidity Contingencies Plan in policy guideline in line with Bangladesh Bank’s Core Risk Guidelines. The Board of Directors of Jamuna Bank Limited has also approved specific Risk Limits for proper liquidity management of the Bank.

 Market risk:
The exposure of market risk of the Bank is restricted to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and equity risk.

6. Foreign exchange risk:
[[
Foreign exchange risk is defined as the potential change in earnings due to change in market prices. The foreign exchange risk of the Bank is minimal as all the transactions are carried out on behalf of the customers against underlying L/C commitments and other remittance requirements. No foreign exchange dealing for trading purpose on Bank’s account was conducted during the year. All Nostro accounts are reconciled on a monthly basis and outstanding entry beyond 30 days is reviewed by the management for its settlement. Steps have been implemented and some are in under process.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk many arise either from trading portfolio and non-trading portfolio. The trading portfolio of the Bank consists of Government Treasury bills and bonds.

The short-term movement in interest rate is negligible. Interest rate risk of non-trading business arises from mismatches between the future yield of an asset and their funding cost. Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) monitors the interest rate movement on a regular basis. Bank has followed some requirements of Bangladesh Bank and some are in under process.

7. Reputation risk arising from money laundering incidences:
Money laundering risk is defined as the loss of reputation and expenses incurred as penalty for being negligent in prevention of money laundering. The bank has already taken many steps required by Bangladesh Bank and some are in under process.

8. Operational risk:
Internal Control and Compliance is a process to provide ‘Immunization’ and a high level of protection from errors, improper process, frauds, surprises and inability to comply with legal and regulatory requirements. Steps have been implemented and some are in under process.

9. Risk Management of Information and Communication Technology (ICT):
The ICT Risk Management is a full blown process for the bank to ensure maintenance or recovery  including  uninterrupted  services  to  customers  an all adverse  events such  as natural disasters, technological failures, human error etc. In order to organize Network resources, the bank pursues a central policy for administrator to secure intranet and internet network access. A security policy is in place with a formal statement of the rules that people who are given access must abide by and adhere to what is laid in the policy. A disaster recovery plan covers data, hardware and software critical for business to restart in the event of a natural or human – caused disaster. Steps have been implemented and some are in under process.

10.  Reconciliation of Inter-Bank / Books of Accounts:
Books of Accounts in regard to inter–bank (in Bangladesh & out side Bangladesh) and inter– branch are reconciled and no material difference was found, which might effect the financial statements significantly.

Un-reconciled entries in case of inter-branch transactions as on the reporting date are not mentionable due to the time gape before finalizing the same.

11.Related Party / (ies) Transition:
As of the date of these financial statements the Bank had no transactions with the related party/
(ies) as defined in the BRPD Circular No. 14 dated 25th June 2003.
12.  General:
i) Figures of previous year have been rearranged whenever necessary to confirm the currentyear presentation.

ii) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka and previous year’s figures have been rearranged to confirm to current year’s presentation.

12. Auditors’ Work–Hour:
The external Auditor of the Bank, Howladar Yunus & CO. Chartered Accounts work about inexcess of 1120 man – hour at the Bank’s Head Office and different Branches. During their audit, they audited above 80% of the Bank’s Risk Weighted Assets as on the reporting date.

Chapter 8

DEPARTMENTALIZATION 

8.1 CASH DEPARTMENT 

Cash department performs the following functions

  Receipt:

The money, which either comes or goes out from the bank, its record should be kept. Cash department performs this function. The deposits of all customers of the bank are controlled by means of ledger accounts. Every customer has its own ledger account and has separate ledger cards.

Payments :

It is a banker’s primary contract to repay money received for this customer’s account usually by honoring his cheques.

 Cheques and their Payment:

 “Cheque is a bill of exchange drawn on a specified banker and not expressed to be payable otherwise than on demand”2.

 “An unconditional order in writing drawn on a specified banker, signed by the drawer, requiring the banker to pay on demand a sum certain in money to, or to the order of, a specified person or to the bearer, and which does not order any act to be done in addition to the payment of money”3. 

 The Requisites of Cheque:

There is no prescribed form of words or design of a Cheque, but in order to fulfill the requirements mentioned in Section 6 above the Cheque must have the following.

a) It should be in writing

b) The unconditional order

c) Drawn on specific banker only

d) Payment on Demand

e) Sum Certain in money

f) Payable to a specific person

g) Signed by the drawer

5.1.5) Parties to Cheque 

The normal Cheque is one in which there is a drawer, a drawee banker and a payee, or no payee but bearer.

a) The Drawer

b) The Drawee

c) The Payee

5.1.6) Types of Cheques 

 Jamuna Bank deal with three types of cheques

a) Bearer Cheques 

Bearer cheques are cashable at the counter of the bank. These can also be collected through clearing.4
b) Order cheque 

These types of cheques are also cashable on the counter but its holder must satisfy the banker that he is the proper man to collect the payment of the cheque and he has to show his identification.  It can also be collected through clearing. 

c) Crossed Cheque 

These cheques are not payable in cash at the counters of a banker.  It can only be credited to the payee’s account. If there are two persons having accounts at the same bank, one of the account holder issues a cross-cheque in favour of the other account holder. Then the cheque will be credited to the account of the person to whom the cheque was issued and debited from the account of the person who has actually issued the cheque.

8.2.) Payment of Cheques 

It is a banker’s primary contract to repay money received for his customer’s account usually by honouring his cheques. Payment of money deposited by the customer is one of the root functions of banking. The acid test of banking is the receipt of money etc. from the depositors, and repayment to them. This paying function is one, which is the distinguishing mark of a banker and differentiates him from other institutions, which receive money from the public. However the bankers’ legal protection is only when payment is in ‘Due Course’. The payment in due course means payment in accordance with the apparent tenor of the instrument, in good faith and without negligence to any person in possession thereof under circumstances, which do not afford a reasonable ground of believing that he is not entitled to receive payment of the amount therein mentioned. It is a contractual obligation of a banker to honor his customer’s cheques if the following essentials are fulfilled.

a) Cheques should be in a proper form:

b) Cheque should not be crossed:

c) Cheque should be drawn on the particular bank:

d) Cheque should not mutilated:

e) Funds must be sufficient and available:

f) The Cheque should not be post dated or stale:

g) Cheque should be presented during banking hours:

8.2) CLEARANCE DEPARTMENT 

A clearinghouse is an association of commercial banks set up in given locality for the purpose of interchange and settlement of credit claims. The function of clearinghouse is performed by the central bank of a country by tradition or by law. In Bangladesh, the clearing system is operated by the SBP. If SBP has no office at a place, then JBL, as a representative of SBP act as a clearinghouse.
After Liberation War, a rapid growth in banking institutions has taken place. The use of cheques in making payments has also widely increased. The collection as settlement of mutual obligations in the form of cheques is now a big task for all the commercial bank. When Cheque is drawn on one bank and the holder (payee) deposits the same in his account at the bank of the drawer, the mutual obligation are settled by the internal bank administration and there arises no inter bank debits from the use of cheques. The total assets and total liabilities of the bank remain unchanged.

In practice, the person receiving a Cheque as rarely a depositor of the cheque at the same bank as the drawer. He deposits the cheque with his bank other than of payer for the collection of the amount. Now the bank in which the cheque has been deposited becomes a creditor of the drawer’s bank. The depositor bank will pay his amount of the cheque by transferring it from cash reserves if there are no offsetting transactions. The banks on which the cheques are drawn become in debt to the bank in which the cheques are deposited. At the same time, the creditors’ banks receive large amounts of cheques drawn on other banks giving claims of payment by them.

The easy, safe and most efficient way is to offset the reciprocal claims against the other and receive only the net amount owned by them. This facility of net inter bank payment is provided by the clearing house.

The representatives of the local commercial banks meet at a fixed time on all the business days of the week. The meeting is held in the office of the bank that officially performs the duties of clearinghouse. The representatives of the commercial banks deliver the cheques payable at other local banks and receive the cheques drawn on their bank. The cheques are then sorted according to the bank on which they are drawn. A summary sheet is prepared which shows the names of the banks, the total number of cheques delivered and received by them. Totals are also made of all the cheques presented by or to each bank. The difference between the total represents the amount to be paid by a particular bank and the amount to be received by it. Each bank then receives the net amount due to it or pays the net amount owed by it.

 In-Word Clearing Books:

The bank uses this book for the purpose of recording all the cheques that are being received by the bank in the first clearing. All details of the cheques are recorded in this book.

      8.4) ADVANCES DEPARTMENT 

Advances department is one of the most sensitive and important departments of the bank. The major portion of the profit is earned through this department. The job of this department is to make proposals about the loans. The Credit Management Division of Head Office directly controls all the advances. As we known bank is a profit seeking institution. It attracts surplus balances from the customers at low rate of interest and makes advances at a higher rate of interest to the individuals and business firms. Credit extensions are the most important activity of all financial institutions, because it is the main source of earning. However, at the same time, it is a very risky task and the risk cannot be completely eliminated but could be minimized largely with certain techniques. 

Any individual or company, who wants loan from JBL, first of all has to undergo the filling of a prescribed form, which provides the following information to the banker.

5.3.2) Principles of Advances 

There are five principles, which must be duly observed while advancing money to the borrowers.

Safety

Liquidity

Dispersal

Remuneration

Suitability

a. Safety 

Banker’s funds comprise mainly of money borrowed from numerous customers on various accounts such as Current Account, Savings Bank Account, Call Deposit Account, Special Notice Account and Fixed Deposit Account. It indicates that whatever money the banker holds is that of his customers who have entrusted the banker with it only because they have full confidence in the expert handling of money by their banker. Therefore, the banker must be very careful and ensure that his depositor’s money is advanced to safe hands where the risk of loss does not exist. The elements of character, capacity and capital can help a banker in arriving at a conclusion regarding the safety of advances allowed by him.

 b.    Character

It is the most important factor in determining the safety of advance, for there is no substitute for character. A borrower’s character can indicate his intention to repay the advance since his honesty and integrity is of primary importance. If the past record of the borrower shows that his integrity has been questionable, the banker should avoid him, especially when the securities offered by him are inadequate in covering the full amount of advance.

It is obligation on the banker to ensure that his borrower is a person of character and has capacity enough to repay the money borrowed including the interest thereon.

c.      Capacity

This is the management ability factor, which tells how successful a business has been in the past and what the future possibilities are. A businessman may not have vast financial resources, but with sound management abilities, including the insight into a specific business, he may make his business very profitable. On the other hand if a person has no insight into the particular business for which he wants to borrow funds from the banker, there are more chances of loss to the banker.

d.      Capital

This is the monetary base because the money invested by the proprietors represents their faith in the business and its future. The role of commercial banks is to provide short-term capital for commerce and industry, yet some borrowers would insist that their bankers provide most of the capital required. This makes the banker a partner. As such the banker must consider whether the amount requested for is reasonable to the borrowers own resources or investment.

e.      Liquidity 

Liquidity means the possibilities of recovering the advances in emergency, because all the money borrowed by the customer is repayable in lump sum on demand. Generally the borrowers repay their loans steadily, and the funds thus released can be used to allow fresh loans to other borrowers. Nevertheless, the banker must ensure that the money he is lending is not blocked for an undue long time, and that the borrowers are in such a financial position as to pay back the entire amount outstanding against them on a short notice. In such a situation, it is very important for a banker to study his borrower’s assets to liquidity, because he would prefer to lend only for a short period in order to meet the shortfalls in the wording capital. If the borrower asks for an advance for the purchase of fixed assets the banker should refuse because it shall not be possible for him to repay when the banker wants his customer to repay the amount. Hence, the baker must adhere to the consideration of the principles of liquidity very careful. 

f.      Dispersal 

The dispersal of the amount of advance should be broadly based so that large number of borrowing customer may benefit from the banker’s funds. The banker must ensure that his funds are not invested in specific sectors like textile industry, heavy engineering or agriculture. He must see that from his available funds he advances them to a wide range of sector like commerce, industry, farming, agriculture, small business, housing projects and various other financial concerns in order of priorities.

Dispersal of advances is very necessary from the point of security as well, because it reduces the risk of recovery when something goes wrong in one particular sector or in one field.

g.     Remuneration 

A major portion of the banker’s earnings comes form the interest charged on the money borrowed by the customers. The banker needs sufficient earnings to meet the following:

a) Interest payable to the money deposited with him.

b) Salaries and fringe benefits payable to the staff members.

c) Overhead expense and depreciation and maintenance of the fixed assets of the bank.

d) An adequate sum to meet possible losses.

e) Provisions for a reserve fund to meet unforeseen contingencies.

f) Payment of dividends to the shareholders.

h.     Suitability 

The word “suitability’ is not to be taken in its usual literary sense but in the broader sense of purport. It means that advance should be allowed not only to the carefully selected and suitable borrowers but also in keeping with the overall national development plans chalked out by the authorities concerned. Before accommodating a borrower the banker should ensure that the lending is for a purpose in conformity with the current national credit policy laid down by the central bank of the country.

5.3.3   Forms of Loans 

In addition to purchase and discounting of bills, bankers in Pakistan generally lend in the form of cash finance, overdrafts and loans.  Provides advances to different people in different ways as the case demand.

 a) Cash Finance 

This is a very common form of borrowing by commercial and industrial concerns and is made available either against pledge or hypothecation of goods, produce or merchandise. In cash finance a borrower is allowed to borrow money from the banker up to a certain limit, either at once or as and when required. The borrower prefers this form of lending due to the facility of paying markup/services charges only on the amount he actually utilizes.

If the borrower does not utilize the full limit, the banker has to lose return on the un-utilized amount. In order to offset this loss, the banker may provide for a suitable clause in the cash finance agreement, according to which the borrower has to pay markup/service charges on at least on self or one quarter of the amount of cash finance limit allowed to him even when he does not utilize that amount.

b)  Overdraft/Running Finance 
This is the most common form of bank lending. When a borrower requires temporary accommodation his banker allows withdrawals on his account in excess of the balance which the borrowing customer has in credit, and an overdraft thus occurs. This accommodation is generally allowed against collateral securities. When it is against collateral securities it is called “Secured Overdraft” and when the borrowing customer cannot offer any collateral security except his personal security, the accommodation is called a “Clean Overdraft”. The borrowing customer is in an advantageous position in an overdraft, because he has to pay service charges only on the balance outstanding against him. The main difference between a cash finance and overdraft lies in the fact that cash finance is a bank finance used for long term by commercial and industrial concern on regular basis, while an overdraft is a temporary accommodation occasionally resorted to. 

c)  Demand Financing/Loans

When a customer borrows from a banker a fixed amount repayable either in periodic installments or in lump sum at a fixed future time, it is called a “loan”. When bankers allow loans to their customers against collateral securities they are called “secured loans” and when no collateral security is taken they are called “clean loans”.

The amount of loan is placed at the borrower’s disposal in lump sum for the period agreed upon, and the borrowing customer has to pay interest on the entire amount. Thus the borrower gets a fixed amount of money for his use, while the banker feels satisfied in lending money in fixed amounts for definite short periods against a satisfactory security 

8.5 REMITTANCE DEPARTMENT 

Remittance means a sum of money sent in payment for something. This department deals with either the transfer of money from one bank to other bank or from one branch to another branch for their customers. JBLs offer the following forms of remittances.

a) Demand Draft

b) Telegraphic Transfer

c) Pay Order

d) Mail Transfer

5.4.1) Demand Draft 

Demand draft is a popular mode of transfer. The customer fills the application form. Application form includes the beneficiary name, account number and a sender’s name. The customer deposits the amount of DD in the branch. After the payment the DD is prepared and given to the customer. JBL officials note the transaction in issuance register on the page of that branch of JBL on which DD is drawn and will prepare the advice to send to that branch. The account of the customer is credited when the DD advice from originating branch comes to the responding branch and the account is debited when DD comes for clearance. DD are of two types.

a) Open DD:
Where direct payment is made.

b) Cross DD:
Where payment is made though account.

5.5 HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Human Resource plays a vital role in the success of every service organization. They interact between man and machine. Their attitude can win or loose the customer. The positive attitude could only be created in a conducive environment, which can make the staff dedicated towards the organization and its objectives. In reality the man is more important than machine as it is the human which could get maximum out of machine to keep a happy customer. However, most organizations give little importance to this very important asset.

Various aspects related to human resource of Jamuna Bank are critically examined in the following text:

5.5.1) Selection & Recruitment 

Jamuna Bank always gives priority to the meritorious student and highly capable person.

Selection Process:

1. Short listed Candidates are called for written test

2. Selected candidate are called for viva voce by maintaining merit list.

3. Then final selection.

5.5.3) Performance Appraisal 

The performance of employees of the Bank are appraised though their annual confidential reports at the end of each year. This has become an outdated method of performance appraisal and no longer used due to the following reasons:

1. The performance of employees is evaluated after 3 years period.

2. Element of subjectivity is involved in this method.

3. Employee’s participation is not ensured in the process of evaluation.

4. Objectives of employee’s are not quantified.

5.5.4) Inter Personal Relationship

Modern management acknowledges human resources as one ‘of the most important assets of an organization. But by their very nature, human beings are also the most unpredictable. Where a number of persons work together, interactions among them, of necessity, will lead to conflicts and JBL is no exception. 

5.5.5) Diversity in Values 

Diversity in values, perceptions, cultural background and life-style is another reason responsible for inter personal conflicts in JBL. Different values and perceptions about the same issue, event or personality hinder understanding. When things come to such a pavement, therefore, interpersonal conflicts are generated.

The dominant trend in all modern industrial societies of the world is merit and expertise, which helps promote cohesion and reduce conflicts. But the feudalistic mindset is still very strong in our set up and there is no tradition of tolerance for differing viewpoints. Hence, interpersonal conflicts are generated.

5.5.6) Corruption 

Our social acceptance of corruption gives rise to corruption at every level of social and organizational set up. Corruption involves financial embezzlement, favoritism, nepotism, cronyism and other number of such practices. All these cause resentment that keep building up and lead to conflict sooner or later. 

In the past few years, some cases of frauds have happened in different branches. The reasons can be linked with the employee dissatisfaction of JBL.

5.5.7) Discipline & Authority 

Maintaining discipline and implementation of authority (tables) in letter and spirit is the key to success of any organization. In JBL, The authority tables are not strictly maintained. Line managers are not fully equipped with the authority with no vertical or horizontal interference.

5.6) DEPOSIT DEPARTMENT: -

 It controls the following activities:

a)         A/C opening.

b)        Issuance of cheque book.

c) Current a/c

d) Saving a/c

e) Cheque cancellation

f) Cash

5.6.1 Account opening

The opening of an account is the establishment of banker customer relationship. Before a banker opens a new account, the banker should determine the prospective customer’s integrity, respectability, occupation and the nature of business by the introductory references given at the time of account opening. Preliminary investigation is necessary because of the following reasons. 

Avoiding frauds

Safe guard against unintended over draft.

Negligence.

Inquiries about clients.

There are certain formalities, which are to be observed for opening an account with a bank.

Formal Application

Introduction

Specimen Signature

· Minimum Initial Deposit 

· Operating the Account

1. Pay-In-Slip Book

2. Pass Book

3. Issuing Cheque Book

a) Qualification of Customer 

The relation of the banker and the customer is purely a contractual one, however, he must have the following basic qualifications. 

· He must be of the age of majority.

· He must be of sound mind.

· Law must not disqualify him.

· The agreement should be made for lawful object, which create legal relationship

· Not expressly declared void.

b)  Types of Accounts 

Following are the main types of accounts

1) Individual Account

2) Joint Account

3) Accounts of Special Types

· Partnership account

· Joint stock company account

· Accounts of clubs, societies and associations

· Agents account

· Trust account

· Executors and administrators accounts

· Pak rupee non-resident accounts

· Foreign currency accounts1
5.6.2 Issuing of cheque book:

This deptt issue cheque books to account holders.

Requirements for issuing cheque book

 a) The account holder must sign the requisition slip 

 b) Entry should be made in the cheque book issuing book

 c) three rupees per cheque should be recovered from a/c holder if not then debit his/her account.

5.6.3 Current account

These are payable to the customer whenever they are demanded. When a banker accepts a demand deposit, he incurs the obligation of paying all cheques etc. drawn against him to the extent of the balance in the account. Because of their nature, these deposits are treated as current liabilities by the banks. Bankers in Bangladesh do not allow any profit on these deposits, and customers are required to maintain a minimum balance, failing which incidental charges are deducted from such accounts. This is because the depositors may withdraw Current Account at any time, and as such the bank is not entirely free to employ such deposits.

Until a few decades back, the proportion of Current Deposits in relation to Fixed Deposits was very small. In recent years, however, the position has changed remarkably. Now, the Current Deposits have become more important; but still the proportion of Current Deposits and Fixed Deposits varies from bank to bank, branch to branch, and from time to time.

5.6.4 Saving account

Savings Deposits account can be opened with very small amount of money, and the depositor is issued a cheque book for withdrawals. Profit is paid at a flexible rate calculated on six-month basis under the Interest-Free Banking System. There is no restriction on the withdrawals from the deposit accounts but the amount of money withdrawn is deleted from the amount to be taken for calculation of products for assessment of profit to be paid to the account holder. It discourages unnecessary withdrawals from the deposits.

In order to popularize this scheme Bangladesh Bank has allowed the Savings Scheme for school and college students and industrial labor also. The purpose of these accounts is to inculcate the habit of savings in the constituents. As such, the initial deposit required for opening these accounts is very nominal.  

7.5)  FOREIGN EXCHANGE/DEPARTMENT:

This dep’t mainly deals with the foreign business. The main functions of this dep’t are: 

a) L/C dealing.

b) Foreign currency accounts dealing.

c) Foreign Remittance dealing.

5.7.1   L/C dealing

JBL is committed to offering its business customers the widest range of options in the area of money transfer.  If you are a commercial enterprise then our Letter of Credit service is just what you are looking for. With competitive rates, security, and ease of transaction, JBL letters of Credit are the best way to do your business transactions.

 5.7.2 Foreign currency account dealing:

This deptt deals with the foreign currency accounts which mainly include dollar account, euro account etc.

 5.7.3 Foreign Remittance dealing.

This is very important function of this deptt.

1. Cash Department

2. General Banking Department.

5.1 Cash Department:

Cash department mainly deals in cash

“To facilitate people in the payments of their bills and taxes and repayments of cash”

There are two main functions of cash department.


i.
Payment
ii.
Receipts 

i. Payments are the function that they pay their cheques and pay cash.

ii. Receipts mean collection of utilities bills, taxes etc.

5.2
General Banking

In this section of the bank the general banking function is performed. It is divided into four departments.

i. Remittances Department.

ii. Computer Department.

iii. Clearing Department.

iv. Establishment Department.

5.2.1
Remittances Department:

 The objective of this department is:-


“To transfer the money of people from one place to another place in safe and comparable way”

The main functions of this department are:

i. Issuing of demand draft.

ii. Issuing of Mail transfer.

iii. Issuing of Telegraphic transfer.

iv. Issuing of payment order.

v. Issuing of call deposit.

vi. Pension payments etc.

vii. Closing and scrolling of government collections.

5.2.3
Clearing Department:

A clearing house is an association of commercial banks set in State Bank of Pakistan for the purpose of interchange and settlement of credit claims.

The objective of this department is to 

“To facilitate customers for payment their Cheques of other banks”.

Two type of clearing books are maintained.

i. In word clearing books:

The bank uses this book for the purpose of recording all the cheques that are being received by the bank in the first clearing. All detail of the cheques are recorded in this book.

ii.
Out word clearing book:

The bank uses outward clearing register for the purpose of recording all the details of the cheques that the banks have delivered to other banks.

5.2.4
Computer Department:

The objective of this Department is to facilitate customers in payment of their cheques”.

The main functions performed by this department are:

a) Checking balance.

b) Deduction from balance on clearing cheques.

c) Issuing bank statements.

d) Dealing Western Union.

5.2.5 Establishment Department:

JBL Branch having an Establishment Department. This. This department mainly deals with the branch employees. The main objective of this department is to 

“To regulate bank business”.

Main functions of this department are:

a) Keeps the record of attendance of employees.

b) Employee’s salaries distribution.

c) Employee’s bonuses etc.

Chapter 10

10. a)

Quality of Working Life in Jamuna bank:
Quality of the degree of personal satisfaction experienced at work. Quality of working life is dependent on the extent to which an employee feels valued, rewarded, motivated, consulted, and empowered. It is also influenced by factors such as job security, opportunities for career development, work patterns, and work-life balance. 
Quality of Working Life is a term that had been used to describe the broader job-related experience an individual has.
Whilst there has, for many years, been much research into job satisfaction (1), and, more recently, an interest has arisen into the broader concepts of stress and subjective well-being (2), the precise nature of the relationship between these concepts has still been little explored. Stress at work is often considered in isolation, wherein it is assessed on the basis that attention to an individual’s stress management skills or the sources of stress will prove to provide a good enough basis for effective intervention. Alternatively, job satisfaction may be assessed, so that action can be taken which will enhance an individual’s performance. Somewhere in all this, there is often an awareness of the greater context, whereupon the home-work context is considered, for example, and other factors, such as an individual’s personal characteristics, and the broader economic or cultural climate, might be seen as relevant. In this context, subjective well-being is seen as drawing upon both work and non-work aspects of life.

This consideration of Quality of working Life as the greater context for various factors in the workplace, such as job satisfaction and stress, may offer opportunity for more cost-effective interventions in the workplace. The effective targeting of stress reduction, for example, may otherwise prove a hopeless task for employers pressured to take action to meet governmental requirements
The recent definition by Serey (2006) on QWL is quite conclusive and best meet the

Contemporary work environment. The definition is related to meaningful and satisfying work. Itincludes (i) an opportunity to exercise one’s talents and capacities, to face challenges and situationsthat require independent initiative and self-direction; (ii) an activity thought to be worthwhile by theindividuals involved; (iii) an activity in which one understands the role the individual plays in theachievement of some overall goals; and (iv) a sense of taking pride in what one is doing and in doing itwell. This issue of meaningful and satisfying work is often merged with discussions of job satisfaction,

and believed to be more favourable to QWL.This review on the definitions of QWL indicates that QWL is a multi-dimensional construct,made up of a number of interrelated factors that need careful consideration to conceptualize andmeasure. It is associated with job satisfaction, job involvement, motivation, productivity, health, safetyand well-being, job security, competence development and balance between work and non work life as is conceptualized by European Foundation for the Improvement of Living Conditions 
To summarise, QWL is viewed as a wide-ranging concept, which includes adequate and fairremuneration, safe and healthy working conditions and social integration in the work organization thatenables an individual to develop and use all his or her capacities. Most of the definitions aim atachieving the effective work environment that meets with the organizational and personal needs andvalues that promote health, well being, job security, job satisfaction, competency development andbalance between work and non-work life. The definitions also emphasize the good feeling perceived from the interaction between the individuals and the work environment.

Understanding the nature of work in the contemporary environment, we define QWL as theeffectiveness of work environment that transmit to the meaningful organizational and personal needs inshaping the values of the employees that support and promote better health and well-being, job

security, job satisfaction, competency development and balance between work and non-work life. Thisdefinition quantifies the QWL among the IT professionals with the aim to gain leverage in recruiting,motivating and retaining the valuable IT workforce as the nature of work continues to diversify.the degree of personal satisfaction experienced at work. Quality of working life is dependent on the extent to which an employee feels valued, rewarded, motivated, consulted, and empowered. It is also influenced by factors such as job security, opportunities for career development, work patterns, and work-life balance.
SWOT ANALYSIS:

SWOT analysis is an acronym that stands for strengths, weakness, opportunities, and threats SWOT analysis is careful evaluation of an organization’s internal strengths and weakness as well as its environment opportunities and threats. 
“SWOT analysis is a situational which includes strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats that affect organizational performance.”1

“The overall evaluation of a company strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats is called SWOT analysis.”2  

In SWOT analysis the best strategies accomplish an organization’s mission by: 

1.
Exploiting an organizations opportunities and strength.

2.
Neutralizing it threats.

3.
 Avoiding or correcting its weakness.

SWOT analysis is one of the most important steps in formulating strategy using the organization mission as a context, managers assess internal strengths distinctive competencies and weakness and external opportunities and threats. The goal is to then develop good strategies and exploit opportunities and strengths neutralize threats and avoid weaknesses.

6.1 STRENGTHS:

The JBL performs additional services for its customers as well as the other bank customer in the absence of SBP. 

6.1.3 MORE DEPOSITS THAN OTHER BANK

JBL has the relative competence in having more deposits than the other bank. This is because of the confidence the customer have in the bank. The bank being the privileged and oldest bank in banking sector in Bangladesh enjoys this edge over all others, lacking it.

6.1.4 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The employers at JBL are offered reasonable monetary benefit. Normally two bonuses are given Eid-Ul-Fitre & Eid-Ul-Azha, incentives are provide numerous time in a year. This serves as an additional benefit and competency for the bank and a source of motivation for the employees. 

6.1.5 BROAD NETWORK

The bank has another competency i.e. it has broad-basses network of branches throughout the country also more than one branch in high productive cities. The customers are provided services at their nearest possible place to confirm customer satisfied.

6.1.6 STRICTLY FOLLOWED RULES &REGULATION:

The employees at JBL are strict followers of rule & regulation imposed by bank. The disciplined environment at JBL bolsters its image and also enhances the over all out put of the organization.

6.1.7 PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE

The employees at JBL here have a good hold on their descriptions, as they are highly skilled Professionals with back ground in business administration, banking, economics etc. These professional competencies enable the employees to understand and perform the function and operation in better way.

6.1.8 HEALTHY ENVIROMNMENT

The working condition in the JBL branch here is very conductive and favorable for better output. The informal environment affects the performance of the employees in a positive way.

6.1.9 RELATION BETWEEN STAFF AND OTHER EMPLOYESS

The bank enjoys a good plus point when it comes to the employee manager relationship the hearing as removing of discrepancies if any, between the employees, and between the manager and employees.

6.2 WEAKNESSES

6.2.1 LACK OF MARKETING EFFORT:

The bank does not promote its corporate image, services, etc on a competitive way. Hence lacks far behind in marketing effort .A need for aggressive marketing in there in the era marketing in now becoming a part of every organization.

6.2.2 JBL UNDER POLITICAL PRESSURE

The strong political hold of some parties and government and their dominance is affecting the bank in a negative way. They sometime have to provide loan under the pressure, which leads to uneven and adjusted feeling in the bank employees.

6.2.5 INEFFICIENT COUNTER SERVICES IN THE RUSH HOURS

During the rush hours, the bank is founded out to be a total flop to handle the mob of people peaking from windows and doors. The bank has deficiency to operate in the stages of rush hours where the people find them services entangled in a situation of nowhere because they are not well served.

.
6.3 OPPORTUNITIES 
6.3.1 ELECTRONIC BANKING

The world today has become a global village because of advancement in the technologies, especially in communication sector. More emphasis is now given to avail the modern technologies to better the performances. JBL can utilize the electronic banking opportunity to ensure on line banking 24 hours a day. This would give a competitive edge over others.

6.3.2 MICRO FINANCING

Because of the need for micro financing in the market, there are lot of opportunities in this regard. Other banks have already initiated, now the time has arrived when the JBL must realize it and take on step to cater an ongoing demand.

6.4 THREATS
6.4.1 EMERGENCE OF NEW COMPETITORS

The bank is facing threats with the emergence of new competitors especially in terms of foreign banks. These foreign banks are equipped with heavy financial power with   excellent and    innovative ways of promoting and performing their services. The bank has to take initiative in this regard or will find itself far back in competition.

6.4.2 POLITICAL PRESSURE BY ELECTED GOVERNMENT

The ongoing shift in power in political arena in the country effects the performance of the bank has to forward loans to politically powerful persons which create a sense of insecurity and demoralization in the customer as well as employees.

6.4.3 DOWNSIZING

The bank is currently acting upon the policy of downsizing which threaten the environment of the bank Employees feel insecurity in doing their jobs and work, hence affecting the over all performance of employees negatively.

6.4.4 CUSTOMERS COMPLAINTS
There exists no regular and specific system of the removal of customer complaints. Now a day a need for total customer satisfaction is emerging and in their demanding consequences customer's complaints are ignored 

7.3.1 Trade creditors

Trade creditors are interested in firm's ability to meet their claims over a very short period of time. Their analysis will, there fore confine to the evaluation of the firm's liquidity positions.

.7.3.2 Suppliers of long-term debt

Suppliers of long-term debt on the other hand are concerned with firm's long-term solvency and survival. They analysis the firms profitability over time, its ability to generate cash to be able to pay interest and repay interest and repay principal and the relationship between various source of funds. (Capital structure relationship).

Long-term creditors do analyses the historical financial statements but they place more emphasis on the firm's projected financial statement to make analysis about its future solvency and profitability.

7.3.3 Investors

Investors who have invested their money in the firms share are most concerned about the firm steady growth in earning. As such, they concentrate on the analysis of the firm's present and future profitability. They are also interested in the firms financial structure of the extent it influence the firms earning ability and risk.

7.3.4 Management.

An organization would be interested in every aspect of the financial analysis. It is their overall responsibility to see that the resources of the firm are used most effectively and efficiently and that the firm's financial condition is sound.

So thus management employee financial analysis for the purpose of internal control and to better provide what capital supplier seeks in financial condition and performance from the business and from an internal control standpoint, management needs to take financial analysis in order to plan and control effectively.
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 Conclusion:

JBL is an effectively operating and profit making organization and carrying out its activities under a specified system of procedure. The main regulatory body is Central Bank, Bangladesh Bank, which provides policy guidelines and ensures that the money market operates on sound professional basis. While the head office specifies the whole procedure of function and operations. This procedure has been modernized with the passage of time with a view to streamline the approach and underlying procedure for effective overhauling of its own capabilities so as to bring them at par with international practices.

Suggestion:

Here I am giving some suggestions, which in my view can add some input for efficiency and better performance of  Jamuna Bank Limited as an organization, Private commercial Bank in Bangladesh in general and City branch in particular.

The recommendations are as follows:

9.1 Professional training

 Today Banking System in Bangladesh is Highly Competitive Sector in Bangladesh, So highly qualitative Student should give more priority.  They need strong professional Training training to do the job efficiently and. BIBM is also giving professional training in this respect. 

9.2 Delegation of authority

Employees of the bank should be given a task and authority and they should be asked for their responsibility.

9.3 Performance Appraisal

The manager should strictly monitor the performance of every staff member. All of them should be awarded according to their performance and result in the shape of bonuses to motivated and incite them to work more efficiently.

9.4 To Over Come Problem of Space and Furniture

Management should purchase more furniture and arrange them in such a way which provides maximum space and convenient especially in deposit department and there should also be convenient sitting place for customers.

9.5 Transfer

Transfer is not properly carried out. Some of the employees are continually serving at the same post. They are simply rotated at the same branch. Therefore it is recommended that evenly rotation of every employee should take place after every three years in different braches of the bank.

9.6 Changes in Policies

There should not be any abrupt policies change by the upper management, as this practice hurts the customer confidences in the bank. Government should make long term policies.

9.7 Need of Qualified Staff

Required, qualified staff should be provided to branch in order to improve the functioning of the branch.

9.8 Credit Card

 These cards are very helpful for the ordinary customer in general and the business people in particular. To make it mores secure and to eliminate the misuse of it, the management is required to keep proper security against the card.

9.9 Installing Validator and ATM

Validator machine is used to count the currency notes and its installation will help to eliminate to counting errors and will save time.

This branch is situated in the City, which is supported to be the hub of business activates. In this area an auto teller machine (ATM) is the need of the hour businessmen can easily check their balance in the bank and also with draw their money conveniently.

9.10 Interest on Overdraft:

Overdraft is a short-term credit facility provided by the bank to its trustworthy customers free of interest. Only bank commission is charge small amount of mark-up on the overdraft, which will help the bank to improve its revenue position. 

9.11 Clean Loans

Clean loan or clean overdraft is the credit facility extended to the customers to the customers without any security. These types of small term loans should not be extended to anybody, because sometime these loans are provided to blue-eyed people of the management and they become a part of bad debts.

9.12 Cash Financing

In this mode of financing the amount of credit not utilized by the borrower is remained tax-free. It is recommended that a small amount of interest should be charge on this amount as well because the bank gas kept-aside the amount for that borrower and can not advance it anywhere.

9.13 Decreasing Administrative Expenses

Bank should minimize their administrative expenses.. Employee can also be how to control the bank expenses. That will give positive results in the future.

9.14 Needs to be Flexible in credit Policy

As mentioned earlier, JBL is very conservative in advances and loans policy. It reduces the investment opportunities. Also loans should be given to the small businessmen and the agriculture sector at the low markup rate. It should adopt flexible credit policy while giving credit to the agriculture sector.

9.15 Technological Advancement

 Jamuna Bank Limited should be fully computerized in order to expedite the dealing process among bankers and their customers. Every department should be provided modern technology with adequate training (especially Advances, Deposits and Foreign Exchange departments).

Daily records should be entered directly into these computers, (instead entering the overall daily transactions after the banking hours). It will not only reduce transaction time, will increase accuracy but will also be efficient as well. 

9.16 Staff Relationship

Good relationship among staff member leads to the peak performances in any organization. I observed that the staff relationship was normal other wise but some time I noticed that there existed a little conformity among the staff members. Another syndrome from which the staff suffered was that all of them considered themselves more important than others. Some of the officers used to say that if I am absent for a day the bank would stop working. So this sort of attitude is not good because it mars bank image and juniors’ willingness learn and work hard and in the end will hurt the whole team.

I watched during my internship that, there is number of employee who have worked on one seat for many a year. It can have negative effects motivation of employee who is hard working and intelligent. Take the example of advances section. In advance section if the employee is transfer after sixth month or seven month, how can he be able to show his performances and how can he be able to know the bank customer in a short period of time.

9.18 Marketing Policy

The branch should adopt various marketing strategy and promotion strategy to promote the bank and its product.

The most important in my opinion is personal marketing; it is the most effective of all when you think in term of branch level. But on the whole organization level, they should arrange the seminar with in the bank and outside the bank. They should introduce various prizing schemes. 

They should do more advertising through newspaper and media and through channel of personal contacts.

9.19 Complaints of Customer

There should be an information desk to provide the information and to receive the complaints of the customer in the bank.

There is no complaint box available in the branch and not any person appointed to hear the complaints.

Every person cannot go to the manager for the complaint because most of the people are hesitant. So I suggest management to install a compliant box in the branch, and recruit a special person for that guidance of the customer when they are unable to manage some difficulties in banking matters.

9.20 Analysis of the Business:

Proper analysis of the business reports should be conducted before extending any type of loan. For this purpose professional training of the stuff member is required.

9.21 Organizational Commitment

It is suggested that employees working on daily wages basis should be given some benefits, which the other employees are getting. Their salaries must increase according to efficiency, performance and service.

9.22 Managerial Leadership

In the analysis, we have discussed the difficulties of the assistant in taking any initiative; therefore it is recommended that the assistants should he given special training to make them ready for the leadership.

9.22Credit Monitoring 

The credit department of the bank should carries out vigilant credit monitoring. They should ensure the proper payment of installments and the mark-up by the borrower.

The staff members who have done all the paper work of the loan extension should perform the monitoring, as he/she will be having more information about the borrower.

9.23 Housing and House Hold Goods loans

Bank should initiate these loans because most of bank’s customers are middle class and they cannot afford to buy house or house hold goods at once by their own 

9.23Avoiding Bad Debts

Great care should be taking while extending the loan. Loans should be awarded against reasonable securities, where market value should be equal to the loan granted.

Policies should be crafted in a way to ensure that no loan is extended on political pressure.  Bank regulation for loan approval should be strictly followed. According to which the current ration of borrower’s business must be 1:1 and the debt to equity ratio should be 60:40, means the liquidity position of business should be healthy.
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